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Tfustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015

The trustees are pleased to present their report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2015. '

~ Report fromthe Chair—Professor David Maguire, Vice Chancel_lor, University of Greenwich

The last year has been challenging for the education sectors in many ways. These challenges will not lessen in the
next few years as we face yet more disruptive change in increasingly difficult financial times.

These coming years will reinforce the fact that digital technologies are no longer an add-on or a luxury but an
absolute essential across all parts of the enterprise in all universities and colleges. Without appropriate digital

technologies, institutions, whatever their size and shape, will not be able to achieve or sustain the improvements

t

in quality - and the efficiencies and financial savings - that all will need if they are to thrive and prosper.

_ Itremains our challenge at Jisc to make sure that we continue to provide, at the very lowest possible cost, those

services that are so critical to the business functions of universities, colleges and learning providers. We have
continued to make sure we reduce our costs to make us leaner and more efficient. So far we've been able to do

~ this without losing or damaging any of those critical services on which our customers rely and which save the

sectors money —more than £20om last year.

Under the tenure of chief executive Professor Martyn Harrow, Jisc has made dramatic and substantial

* transformational change. Jisc is led by a highly motivated and highly engaged board of trustees, who take the
. governance of the sector-owned organisation as seriously as universities, colleges and learning providers

demand. In line with good practice we are conducting a review of the effectiveness of the board and look

-forward to identifying how we can further develop our governance to continue to maintain the confidence of the

sector in managing the services on which they depend.

The organisation is now set and ready for its next phase of development under its new chief executive, Dr Paul
Feldman. We will continue to concentrate on providing the very best products and services to our customers,
making the benefits absolutely clear and demonstrating that these are best achieved through a single national
strategic organisation such as Jisc, working for the advancement of education for the public benefit.

We have changed and will continue to evolve our approach to the way we engage with universities, colleges and
learning providers through our customer services team, ensuring a renewed and reinforced priority focused on
their needs, making sure that they get the fullest benefit out of what we currently do. Through our engagement
architecture and our co-design innovation process, universities, colleges and learning providers are an integral
part of deciding and shaping what we do for our sectors in the future.

In 2015 we launched and established new products and services in response to our customers’ needs and direct
requests, from the award winning cloud data services to our Financial X-Ray cost-capturing product. Looking
ahead, we are working with key stakeholders to bring to market important new services around business

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 3
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued . o7

Report from the Chair — Professor David Maguire, Vice Chancellor, University of Greenwich
“continued

intelligence, learner analytics and research data management. We will continue with our determined support for
the FE and skills sector, especially during the forthcoming area review process to restructure the FE sector
currently underway across England. ' '

Jisc is the sectors’ own organisation under the sectors' oversight and direction and dedicated entirely to its
collective needs. We look forward to continuing to work with all our colleagues in 2016 and beyond to harness
the unique advantage of Jisc for their further collective benefit.

The board offers its sincere thanks to the previous chair, Professor Martin Hall, previous Chief Executive,
Professor Martyn Harrow and to all Jisc employees for continuing to strive to make Jisc the very best
orgamsatlon it can be.

Professor David Maguire
25 November 2015

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 . _— 4
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Trustees’ Report for the Year ended 31 July 2015 cbntinued

What Jisc does

Jisc championsthe importance and potential of digital technologies for UK education and résearch; and does three

main things:

1.
2.

It provides shared digital infrastructure and services for Universities and-colleges. ‘
It makes sector-wide deals with IT vendors and commercial publishers that all universities and colleges can
draw on. ' : )

It. provides expert and trusted édyice and practical assistance on the use and- potential of digital
technologies. ' CL

Working closely with colleagues and agencies across the sectors the aim is to:

1.

2. -
3.

Deliver considerable collective digital advantage and financial savings for UK universities and colleges.
today. ' ) ' '
Ensure these benefits are sustained and intelligently further enhanced ahead.

Do all this as affordably, efficiently and cost effectively as possible. -

Further information about future plans can be found in the Plans for Future Periods on page 38.

Legal and administrative information

Trustees

The trustees of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial

statements (except where indicated) were:

Professor Robin Baker, OBE — Director and Chief Executive, Ravensbourne (appointed by GuildHE — until 7
January 2015) ' '

"ProfessorChris Brink - Vice Chancellor, Newcastle University (appointed by Universities UK- until 8 January

2015)

- DrPaul Feldman - Chief Executive, Jisc (from 19 October 2015)

Professor Philip Gummett, CBE — retired Chief Executive, Higher Education Funding Council for Wales
(appointed by funders) : ' '

Professor Martin Hal( (Chair and trustee until 14 May 2015) — Vice Chancellor, University of Salford (retired
from University of Salford 31 December 2014)

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 . , - 5
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued
Trustees continued
Professor Martyn Harrow — Chief Executive, Jisc* .
Professor Paul Layzell - Pri-nc’ipal, Royal Holloway University of London
.Professor Noel LI_oyd'CBE— Retired Vice Chancellor, Aberysfwyth University (until 30 November 2014)

Ms Heather MacDonald — Chief Executive, The Sheffield College (appointed by Association of Colleges,
retired from The Sheffield College 19 June 2015, but remains a trustee of Jisc)

Professor David Maguire —Vice Chancellor University of Greenwich (trustee from 3 July 2014, appointed as
chair from 15 May 2015)

Professor Calie Pistorius - Vice Chancellor, University of Hull (appointed by Universities UK - from 11 May -
2015) '

' Professor Nigel Seaton — Prlnapal and Vice Chancellor, Abertay Umver5|ty (appomted by GuildHE - from
28 January 2015)

Professor Mark Smith — Vice Chancellor, Lancaster University (from 10 December 2014)
Dr Ken Thomson — Principal, Forth Valley College (from g December 2014)

Professor Anne Trefethen — Chief Information Officer, University of Oxford

Jisc's trustees, with the exception of Jisc’s Chief Executive, are all considered to be independent non-executive
directors. The nature of Jisc’s business, and its relationship with UK higher education institutions and further
education colleges through institutional membership and the delivery of services means that Jisc does have a
relationship with the employing organisations of the majority of trustees. However, this is reflective of the
membership structure of the organisation and the purposeful approach to ensuring Jisc’s activities are gunded by
the customers we exist to serve and does not affect the independence of trustees.

: Professor Harrow left the organisation on 19 October 2015 and was no longer a trustee at the time of signing the Trustees’
Report and Financial Statements

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 ‘ 6
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued

Jisc Executive Group

The following members of the Jisc Executive Group are responsible for managing the day to day activities of the
charitable company: ' .

Professor Martyn Hérrow, Chief Executive?

Ms Alice Colban, Chief Oberating Officer and Deputy:Chief Exécutive (Company Secretary)
Mr Mark Wright, Chief Financial Officer o ‘

Ms Lorrainé Estelle, Execytive director, Digital Resourcés (until 31 March 2015)

Mr Keith Cole, Interim Executive direttor (from 1 April 2015)

Mr Robert Haymon-Collins, Executive director, Customer Experience

‘Mr Timofhy Marshall, Executive director, Jisc Technoiogies (until 25 November 2014)3

Mr Timothy Kidd, EXecutive director, Jisc Technologies (from 26 November 2014)

Dr Phil Richards, Chief Innovation Officel;

"Registe'red and head office address
#One Castlepark
‘Tower Hill

Bristol, BS2 0JA

Company registration number:.05747339
Charity registration number: 1149740

Cdmpany Secretary: Ms Alice Colban

2 From 19 October 2015, Dr Paul Feldman will take up the position of Jisc Chief Executive

- 3With effect from 1 October 2014, Mr Timothy Marshall was appointed Chief Executive of Jiscom, Jisc's new wholly owned
commercial trading Subsidiary company, established in autumn 2014. Further information on Jiscom is included in the Jisc
Commercial Limited section on page 32.

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 ‘ A ' . 7
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued

Independent Auditors -

PricewatérhouseCoopers LLP
One Reading Central

23 Forbury Road

Reading

Berkshire

RG13JH

Bankers
Lloyds Bank Plc
39 Threadneedle Street
The City
.London
EC2R 8AU

" Solicitors

DAC Beachcroft , Veale Wésbrough Vizards
100 Fetter Lane Orchard Court
London Orchard Lane
EC4A 1BN _ Bristol '
. o . BS15WS

Legal status of Jisc

Jiscis a charitable company limited by guarantee (CLG). Jisc’s constitution allows for two classes of membership. _
One class comprises Representative Members, which includes the original members and guarantors - the

Association of Colleges, GuildHE and Universities UK. Each of these Representative Members holds 30% of the

voting rights.. The other class of membership comprises Institutional Members, who together-hold 10% of the

" voting rights; This class of membership is limited to UK education, learning and research providers for which Jisc’
receives central funding from the UK higher and further education funding bodies. A full list of Jisc's members can

be found in the Register of Members at https:l/www.jisc.ac.uk/about/institutional-membership'.

Jisc is a holding company, with two wholly owned subsidiary' companies — Jisc Commercial Limited and Jisc
Services Limited. '

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 . . ‘ 8
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued

Legal status of Jisc continued -

> & e i

HEls and FECs from across the UK

W

Company number 02517018 Company number 02600590 Company nhumber 03216271
Charity number 1001127 Cherity number 1012218 . Not a registered charity
Representative member of Jisc Representative member of Jisc Representative member of Jisc Institutional member of Jisc
> <
307 . 30% 195
~Tff"’ F o5

l | | |
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Q O
o R Y 20
Jiséom Board of Jisc Commercial Limited Jisc Services L'nted ”5‘ Services LV
Q"'B(irectors, indudes J€) ------=-- Ya “Jiscom” {Company B (Company jimuted by I Boa"d comprises’ J'SCO
r}[S( Trustees Ilm:ed bly s:ares ‘l fisc guarantee} -Exeamve Group
is the sole shareholder)
Q3 - szmaefz/

Jisc Commercial Limited (company number 09316933) was incorporated in November 2014 as a commercial
vehicle through which Jisc could maximise the exploitation of its assets to provide income to reinvest in the
development and delivery of Jisc services to its customers. Further information can be found later in this report
(see page 32). ' '

Jisc Services Limited (company number 02881024) was previously known as Jisc Collections and Janet Limited.
For the period August 2014 — March 2015, the Jisc board also acted as the board of Jisc Collections and Janet
Limited, with a small change in the composition of the directors, in line with Charity Commission guidance. In
March 2015, the name of the company was changed, new Articles of Association agreed and a new board was
appointed. Further information on these changes and the governance of Jisc Services Limited can be found later
in this report (see page 29) and in the Jisc Services Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15.

The Jisc board has overall strategic oversight of the Jisc group. All three companies in the group operate under
defined Articles of Association. The lJisc Articles are available from the Jisc website at
http://www.jisc.ac.uk/about/corporate/company-and-charity-details.

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 9
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued

Membership structure and VAT Cost Sharing Group

Jisc institutional membership is open to all eligible higher education institutions and further education colleges
across the UK. Eligibility is determined by the core funding received from the higher and further education funding
bodies. With Jisc membership comes automatic membership of the VAT Cost Sharing Group, which means that
members will not pay VAT on their Jisc subscription (where this applies) and a range of other services that Jisc
provides. The Jisc VAT Cost Sharing Group has been approved by the VAT Policy Unit at HM Revenue & Customs
and is one of the largest VAT Cost Sharing Groups in the UK. At 31 July 2015, 149 higher education institutions and
119 FE, Sixth Form or Specialist colleges in the UK were Jisc members. ‘

Role of the me_mbers

Institutional Members are represented by the most appropriate Representative Member (Association of Colleges,
GuildHE or Universities UK) to act on their behalf in governance matters of Jisc. Institutional Members are free to
choose to represent themselves, though none have elected to do so. This approach saves Institutional Members
the overhead costs associated with discussing governance and compliance activities with Jisc, and saves Jisc the
cost of discussing procedural matters with a sugnlflcant number of members. lJisc’s Representative Members
therefore also act in the interests of their nominating members. A ‘

The liability of each member (both Institutional and Representative) is limited to a maximum of £1. This liability
will apply for the duration of membership of the charitable company and for. one year beyond the end of
- membership. ' : '

Jisc’'s members have the following rights according to provisions in the Companies Act 2006:

- Toreceive a copy of the annual report and financial statements
- . Toagree changes to the Articles of Association and company name
- Tobesenta proposed written resolution
- Torequire circulation of a written resolution
- Torequire Trustees’ to call a general meeting
- Toreceive notice of a general meeting
- Torequire circulation of a statement
- Toappoint a proxy to act at a meeting

Each Representatiye Member is the same class of member, each having one vote on resolutions proposed to
members. Ordinary resolutions specific to members meetings can be passed by a simple majority vote. Further.
information on the types of decision to be proposed to members through a resolution is included in the Articles of
Association. ‘

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 : 10
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Trustees'’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Legal and administrative information continued

Charitable status

Jisc is a registered charity and as such, its purposes must be exclusively charitable. A charitable purpose is a
purpose which comes within the descriptions listed in the Charities Act 2011 and which is for the public benefit.
The Charity Commission says that to advance education means to “promote, sustain and increase individual and
collective knowledge and understanding of study, skills and expertise” and that the types of charity capable of
advancing educatton include “organisations supporting the work of educational establishments".

As a charity, Jisc uses Charity SORP for its financial reporting and applies this for both the Jisc group and the
charitable company.

Charitable company objects
“* The Charity's objects ("Objects") are spécifically restricted to the advancement of education for the public benefit

" through the provision to the Education, Learning and Research Community in the United Klngdom and elsewhere
of services in the following key areas:

,Dlgltal Infrastructure and Technology S SR DigitalContentathiscovery.

The provision and malntenance of technology expertlse i The p‘rbcurement and provision of simple and fast access
~ world- class, cost -effective and value-adding shared - to a wealth, of ‘high-quality dugltal information resources
networks; and other information and mmmumratlons. and dlscovery environments. - -
technology(!CT) mfrastructure appllcatlons systems and : ‘
‘services. : :

Value Realisation ) Futures

The provision of guidance, tools and practical assistancein ~ The provision of foresight, evaluation, experimentation,
relation to the exploitation of digital content and néw  co-development and prototyping in order to identify
technologies and information management practices. . potential opportunities.

Trustees’ Repart for the year ended 31 July 2015 : 11
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- Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management

Role of trustees

The trustees are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. In discharging their
responsnbllltles trustees must act solely in the mterests of the charitable company - they are not the delegates or
representatives of any nominating body.

Until March 2015, Jisc's trustees also acted as the board of the then subsidiary company, Jisc Collections and Janet
Li.mited with a small change in the 'composition of the board to reflect Charity Commission guidance. Further
information can be found in the Jisc Services Limited (prevuously Jisc Collectlons and Janet lelted) governance
section of this report on page 2g9. ' C ‘

Two trustees act as co-chairs of the Jisc Stakeholder Forum, a key mechanism for engaging with stakeholders.
Trustees also act as chair of three board committees (Nominations & Governance; Audit and Risk Management;
Remuneration). The chairs of these committees are appointed by the board based on recommendations from the
Nominations and Governance commlttee

The Jisc chair also chairs the Funders and Owners Group, which brings together representatives from Jisc's funders
and Representative Members. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Governance Manager attend these meetings with other colleagues from the Jisc Executive Group attendmg asand
when appropnate

Responsibilities of trustees

The trustees’ of a charitable company have ultimate responsibility for directing the affairs of the charitable
company. They must ensure that the charitable company is and remains solvent, they must use the charitable
company's funds prudently and only in furtherance of the charitable company's objects and they must avoid
undertaking activities that might place the charitable company's funds at undue risk. )

To ensure that trustees are able to appropriately discharge their duties, trustees are expected.to make every effort
to attend board meetings and the annual away day, and to participate fully in discussions. The following table
indicates attendance of trustees at meetings throughout 2014-15: ‘

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 ‘ o ) 12
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management continued

Trustee Eligibility to Actual attendance
attend (based on
term of office) _
Professor Robin Baker OBE 2 2
Professor Chris Brink 2 1
Professor Philip Gummett CBE 5 .5
Professor Martin Hall 4 4
Professor Martyn Harrow 5 5
Professor Paul Layzell 5 4
Professor Noel Lloyd CBE 2 2
Ms Heather MacDonald 5 4
_ | Professor David Maguire 5 ‘5 .
Professor Calie Pistorius 2 2
Professor Nigel Seaton 3 3.
Professor Mark Smith 3 3
Dr Ken Thomson 3 3
Professor Anne Trefethen 5 5

Appointment of chair and trustees
- Jisc chair-

The Jisc chair'is appointed by the Representative Members (see Legal Status of Jisc section on page 8). Thisisa
separate role to that of the Jisc Chief Executive and there is no intention to alter this structure.

In February 2015 an advertisement was placed in the national media for a new Jisc chair to take up post from May
2015 following the retirement of Professor Martin.Hall. A shortlisting and interview panel was established to
manage the appointment process, which comprised a current Jisc trustee and two independent members. As a
result of this process, a recommendation was made to the Represéntative Members, who agreed the appointment
of Professor David Maguire, Vice Chancellor, University of Greenwich for an initial period of three years from 15
May 2015. The appointment comes with the option for renewal for a further three years subject to a satisfactory
review of performance and the approval of Jisc’s Representative Members.

Jisc trustees
Jisc's trustées are senior leaders working in UK further and higher education. These experts determine strategic

- direction and priorities to reflect the present and future needs of the education and research communities. The
Nominations and Governance committee has defined a skills set for trustees which brings together a range of

Trustees’ Report for the yeér ended 31 July 2015 . ' 13
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management continued
Appointment of chair and trustees continued

experience and skills to ensure that the Jisc board remains a highly functioning group. Individuals are drawn from
-across the UK to provide an appropriate balance of experience from the respective countries and from the sectors
we serve. The composition of the board is also guided by equality and diversity considerations.

One trustee is nominated by each Representative Member (AoC, GuildHE and UUK) and one nominated by Jisc's
funders. These trustees are identified in the Legal and administration section on page 5. During 2014-15, GuildHE

- and UUK nominated new trustees to the Jisc board. Trustees nominated by these organisations remain subject to
the approval and recommendation of the Nominations and Governance committee. These trustees act solely in
the interest of Jisc and not as the delegates or representatives of any nominating body.

The remaining trustees are elected by the board on the recommendation of the Nominations and Governance
committée. A phased approach to turnover of trustees is in place, overseen by the Nominations and Governance
committee. All new trustees are appointed for an initial period of three years, with the option for appointment for
a further three years subject to a satisfactory review of performance and the approval of the Nominations and

Governance committee. .

Further information on the work of the Nominations and Governance committee can be found under Key Board
committees on page 17. ’

An induction is providea to new trustees on Jisc's activities, financial position and risks as well as their duties and
responsibilities in the context of the charitable company. A seminar is held annually on varying aspects of the
duties and responsibilities of trustees and updates to relevant legislation is provided. Good practice
documentation from the Charity Commission is shared with all trustees upon apﬁointment and when new or
updated documents are published.

Remuneration of trustees

Remuneration is paid to Professor Martyn Harrow for his role as Chief Executive of Jisc and Professor David
Maguire (and until May 2015, Professor Martin Hall) for the role of Chair. No other trustees are remunerated. The
details of this remuneration are shown in note 8 in the Financial Statements on page 53. The level of remuneration
has been approved by the Remuneration committee, and Jisc’s Articles of Association give express authority for
this payment. Travel and subsistence costs are refunded to trustees and committee members on submission of a
claim with supporting receipts. »

Trustees’ Repdrt for the year ended 31 July 2015 _ ' T : 14 .
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management continued

Trustees’ indemnity insurance

Trustee indemnity insurance provides insurance cover for charitable company trustees against claims which may

arise from their legitimate actions as trustees. Insurance is in place for all trustees through the course of their

appointment with Jisc. As a matter of law, charities require authority to purchase this type of insurance.

Key Board committees

The board has three standing committees.that undertake key activities on its behalf. Each committee has

. responsibility across the Jisc group. Reports from the committees are regularly received by the board and the

board remains responsible for the activity it-has delegated to these committees.

Audit and Risk Management committee

#The Audit and RISk Management committee meets three times a year. The Terms of Reference for the committee,

* reviewed and updated in July 2015, are as follows:

Vi.
vii.
viii.

Advise the Board on the appointment of external auditors for Jisc and its subsidiary companies and to -
monitor the performance and effectiveness of auditors;

Ensure that Jisc's internal auditors have access to the mformatlon necessary to discharge their duties.
Auditors are expected to be in attendance at each committee meeting and have the right to call a
committee meeting without Jisc staff present; _

Satisfy. itself that satisfactory arrangements are in place to promote economy, efficiency and
effectiveness; : - ‘ » '
Oversee the formal risk management frameworks and risk appetites in place in the Jisc Group and
advise the board on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management structures and the nsk
status of Jisc;.

" Capture and con5|der the identified risks and thelr scores to ensure a complete and robust picture of

the risk enwronment
Ensure that an appropriate system of internal control is in place;

‘Periodically review the controls in place and reflect on the level of assurance given;

Oversee the work on the efficiency and value of Jisc and act as primary governance contact for the
Strategic Support Unit; and

Review and recommend the annual financial statements and report for the Jisc Group and subsidiary
companies to the board.

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 o . 1§
\ .
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Trustees’ Report forthe year ended 31 July 2015 continued | )

Corporate structure, governance and management continued

Key board committees continued

The following table includes details of the members of the Audit and Risk Management committee and theur
attendance at meetings during 2014-15:

Committee member Eligibility to Actual
' attend (based | attendance
ontermof |-
: office)

Ms Heather MacDonald, Jisc trustee (Chair) . 3 3
Professor Philip Gummett CBE, Jisc trustee - 3 3

Mr Stephen Large, Director of Finance, King's College London 3 3

Ms Nicola Owen, Chief Administrative Officer, Lancaster Unlver5|ty 3 2
Vacancy* N/A N/A

Members of the Jisc Executive Group and the Governance Manager attend meetings of the committee but are not
members thereof. . Jisc’s internal auditors are in attendance at each meeting to discuss audit findings and
recommendations for the .improvement of Jisc’s system of internal controls, together with management’
responses. Jisc’s external auditors join the committee for one meeting a year to discuss the’Annual Reports and
Financial Statements for all companies in the Jisc group. ‘The committee has the option of meeting the’ external
and internal audltors on their own for independent discussions without the presence of Jisc staff.

Audit and Risk Management committee: Key activities 2014-15

* .extension of the Risk Management Framework to include risk registers for each directorate and the
development of the risk appetite for Jisc (see Risk management and internal control on page 20)

e consideration of the risk management framework and risk appetite of Jisc Commercial Limited

e consideration of the value and efficiency of Jisc and associated metrics

e consideration of a comprehensive range of internal audits

| o review of the Scheme of Delegation and financial policies

e consideration of Jisc's stakeholder engagement'approach, disaster recovery planning and health and safety
approach

4 Avacancy has existed on the committee and following a recent advert, an individual has been identified who will
bring the expertise required. '

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 : ' . . 16
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and managemént continued

Key board committeés continued . L -

The Audit and Risk Management committee provides a high level review of the internal control arrangements of
the charitable group and reports on thIS to the board. One element of the system of internal controls is Internal
Audit, which undertakes a programme of work, agreed with and reported to the Audit and Risk Management
- Committee. The programme of internal audits is considered and agreed by the committee and the Jisc board each
year and is designed in the context of a wider assurance framework.

Nominations and Governance Committee

- The Nominations and Governance committee meets at least once annually and discusses issues via email
“throughout the year. In 2015-16 it is expected that the committee will meet in person more frequently to discharge
their responsibility forthe Jisc Fellowship schemes which was launched in August 2015.

The Terms of Reference for the committee, reviewed and updated in June 2015, are as follows:
i.  Make recommendations to the board in relatlon to the appointment of members of the board;
ii.  Agree, and keep under review, an appropriate mix of skills and expertise amongst members and
ensuring appropriate country and sector representation for the Jisc board; -
iii. ~ Ensure that amongst the chairs and any vice chairs of the Jisc board, subsidiary company boards,
Stakeholder Forum and supporting committees, that the mix and balance of chairs should be
#* 7' constituted to broadly reflect the sectors Jisc serves and the respective financial contributions;
iv. Ensurea formal, transparent and effective system for the nomination and election of Non-Executive
" Directors to the Jisc board and for nominations to the Jisc Commercial Limited board and supporting'
"~ committees, and to recommend appointments in line with this system;
v.. Oversee the establishment and management of the Jisc Fellows scheme, making recommendations
to the board for the award of the title as necessary; )
vi. _ Consider the equality and diversity of Jisc board and supporting committee members;
vii.  Monitor and manage conflicts of interest;

5 The Jisc Fellowship Scheme is intended to recognise distinguished innovators or practitioners in the effective use and
application of modern digital technology and digitally enabled practice, primarily in research and education, and in other
relevant areas. Nominations for the award of the title of “Jisc Fellow"” are invited from a range of Jisc's stakeholders.

Trustees' Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 . ‘ - 17



Year ended 31 July 2015

JiSC ~ ‘ B Jisc Trustees’ Repor't’s—r“\d Financial Statements

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2615 continued

- Corporate structure, governance and management continued

Key board committees continued

vii.  Monitor the attendance of board, subsidiary company boards and supporting committees and take

appropriate action to address non-attendance;
ix.  Ensure a sensible approach to succession planning;

X.  Ensure that the board and supporting committees undertake a review of their performance and

effectiveness as a group, and individually (with external expertise as deemed appropriate); and

xi.  Ensure that the Jisc Stakeholder Forum is appropriately planned and managed, and ensure that the ‘

Jisc board considers and responds to issues raised at the meeting '

Committee member

January 2015)

| Eligibility to Actual
attend (based | . attendance
. onterm of - :
. office)
Professor Martin Hall - Jisc and committee chair (until 14 May 2015) 1 1
Professor David Maguire — Jisc and committee chair (from 15 May 2015) 1 1
Professor Robin Baker OBE - Jisc trustee and committee member (until 7 o .0
January 2015) '
Professor Chris Brink - Jisc trustee and committee member (until 8 January (o 0
2015) Co : .
Professor Philip Gummett CBE - Jisc trustee and committee member - 2 1
Ms Heather MacDonald - Jisc trustee and committee member 2 2
Professor Calie Pistorius - Jisc trustee and committee member (from 11 May 1 [¢)
2015) ' ' .
Professor Nigel Seaton — Jisc trustee and committee member (from 28 2 2,

The Chief Executive, Chief Operating Officer and Governance-Manager are in attendance at meetings of the

Committee but are not members thereof.

no

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 .Iulyvzo15

18




Year ended 31 July 2015

JiSC Jisc Trustees’ Report and Financial Statements

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management continued

Key board committees continued

Nominations and Governance committee: Key activities 2014-15

board
e Oversight of the recruitment of the Jisc Chair

e Review of Jisc Governance Framework
» Consideration of the approach to the 2015 board effectiveness review
e Design of the new Jisc Fellows scheme

e Consideration of diversity issues

e Consideration of approach to filling Audit and Risk Management committee vacancy

e Consideration of the skills matrix for trustees and associated recommendations for appointment to the Jisc

e Oversight of the appointment process for new trustees and associated recommendation to the board

Remuneration committee

The committee usually meets once a year and holds email discussions as necessary to discharge their duties. The

Terms of Reference are as follows:

i.  topropose and review the remuneration (|fany) of members of the board and members of the boards

of the Charity's subsidiaries;

ii.  topropose andreviewthe remuneration of the senior staff of the Charity and the Charity's subsidiaries;
iii.  to monitor and evaluate the performance of the Executive Directors and the senior management of

~ the Charity and the Charity's subsidiaries; and

iv.  to advise the board, as necessary, on standardisation of remuneration and terms and condltlons of

employment across the Charlty and its subsidiaries.

Committee member Eligibility to Actual
attend (based | attendance
on term of
" office)
Professor Martin Hall - Jisc and committee chair until 14 May 2015 o2 2
‘Professor David Maguire - Jisc and committee chair from 15 May 2015 3 2
Professor Paul Layzell - Jisc trustee and committee member 3 2
Ms Heather MacDonald - Jisc trustee and committee member 1 1
Trustees' Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 19
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Corporate structure, governance and management continued

)

Key board committees continued

The Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer are in attendance when it is appropriate and are absent when
issues of direct relevance to their positions are discussed. An external Human Resources consultant supports the
committee. ’ :

Remuneration committee: Key activities 2014-15

e Appointment of the new Jisc Chief Executive

e Appointments to senior roles in the Jisc Group .

e Oversight of changes to Jisc's customer services function

¢ Consideration of performance management scheme for the Jisc group
e Review of pay and reward for staff

e Review of the performance of executive directors

Risk management and internal control

Jisc board and internal control

The Jisc board is ultimately responsible for the charitable company’s system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. Such a system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The board normally meets four times a year for formal meetings, with an annual strate'gy-focussed .away-day.
Since September 2014 the board also meets for a stratégic discussion the day prior to formal board meetings to

_focus on a specific issue in more detail. As described in the Key Board Committees section on page 15, the board
has an Audit and Risk Management committee, Nominations and Governance committee and a Remuneration
committee. There are agreed terms of reference for these committees which include the authority delegated.to
the committee by the board. While authority is delegated, responsibility continues to reside with the board. The
Jisc Articles of Association clearly identify areas of responsibility which cannot be delegated.

Day to day running of Jisc is delegated to the Chief Executive and Executive Group as described in the Legal and
administration section of this report (page 7).
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Risk management and internal control continued
Risk Management Framework

The following key principles outline the approach to risk management: - !

. The Jisc board has responsibility for overseeing risk managemeht within Jisc as a whole.

e _The Jisc board encourages Well-managed risk taking where it has good potential to realise sustainable
improvements in service delivery and value for money.

® The Jisc board encourages Jisc to use the risk assessment as a means of assessing the opportunities, as
well as threats, for operations. S ' ‘

e Anopenand receptive approach to solving risk problems is adopted by the board.

e The Jisc Executive Group subports, advises and implements decisions agreed by the board.

e Decision making and planning should be supported by risk assessment and management'at a'Jisc-wide,

Jisc directorate, service or project level. o

There is a formal risk management framework in place. The framework allows assessment of strategic and
operational risks and the implementation of risk management strategies. A strategic (corporate) risk register,
including key high level operating risks is aned by the Executive Group, and is reviewed every two months or

. more frequently as necessary. The risk register covers commercial, financial, political, environmental, cultural, '
acquisition and quality risks. Each Jisc directorate has its owrl_orisk register related to the strategic register as
_:.é.appropr'iate, with more specific service and project related risk registers as necessary. Comprehensive risk
. Management training is provided to all managers and appropriate staff and supporting documentation is available
for all staff across the organisation. The principal risks associated with Jisc can be found in the'PrincipaI Risks and
Uncertainties section on page 4o0. _ -

The framework also includes a risk appetite, in the context of Jisc's approach to “well-managed risk taking"”.
Attitude to risk is communicated to the whole organisation and applied in decision making regarding the
prioritisation of policies, work streams, programmes, projecfs, operational service delivery and the funding that
goes with them. ' '

A separate risk management framework and risk appetite exist for Jisc Commercial Limited to reflect the role of .-
the company within the Jisc group. Further information can be found in the Jisc Commercial Limited Report and
Financial Statements Year Ended 31 July 2015.

Internal control

A system of internal control has been developed to provide reasonable assurance against inappropriate use of
resources and against the risk of errors or fraud. It also supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives.
Internal control processes include: A :

e astrategic framework, approved by the board, which describes ten impact areas;
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Risk management and internal control continued

Internal control continued

e alisc-wide business plan;

e anannual budget approved by the board; .

e consideration of the financial results of the group by the board |nclud|ng variance from budgets and
benchmarklng reviews;

e delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

e identification and management of risks or potential risks through a strategic risk register;

e aninternal auditor reporting to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and trustees;

® processes in place for identifying and managing compliance with relevant legislation and with the
requirements of regulatory bodies; and;

e operational policies and procedures for staff mcludmg a Whistleblowing pohcy and Anti-bribery
and corruption policy.

“The internal ‘auditors are responsible for the planning and completion of a programme of risk-based audits
designed to review the effectiveness of internal control processes across the Jisc ‘group and to provide
recommendations on the strengthening of the control environment. An assurance map has been created to
ensure appropriate coverage of risk areas through either internal audits or management reporting.

Jisc internal audit opinion 2014-15

The opinion from Internal Audit, based onthe reviews undertaken completed during the period, and in the
context of materiality is as follows:

“The risk management activities and controls in the areas which we-examined were found to be suitably
designed to achieve the specific risk management, control and governance objectives in the key areas. Based on
our sample testing, risk management, control and governance arrangements were operating with sufficient
effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related risk management, control and governance
objectives were achieved by the end of the period under review.” ' '

The Audit and Risk Management committee provides an independent oversight of the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control and is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual internal audit programme,
reviewing the key flndlngs of the audit reports as well as monitoring the |mplementat|on of accepted
recommendations.
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Trdstees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Internal control continued

Appointment of Independent Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore continue in office. A review of audit provision for the Jisc Group will
be conducted during 2015-16. :

Internal organisation and policies

Directorate structure and staff numbers

Jisc now employs 498 staff across 6 directorates which span Jisc and Jisc Services Limited. The workforce has

increased in the last year, which is primarily due to the bringing in house of former regional service centre staff

The six directorates are as follows:

Jisc Customer Experience

Jisc Digital Futures

Jisc Digital Resources

Jisc Finance and Commerecial
Jisc Operations and Governance
Jisc Technolqgieé

© The gender and age breakdown of staff across the organisation is as follows:

~ into the Jisc customer experience directorate, along with associated increases in support staff.

Number | % Total

Gender - Male 266 53

Female | 232 47

TOTAL | 498 100

| Age 16-24 12 2.4
25-34 | 101 20.3
35-44 | 182 36.5
45-54 130 26.1
55-64 |68 13.7

65+ 5 1.0

TOTAL | 498 100

| Age - 16-24 6 2.6
-Females 25-34 54 23.3
' 35-44 | 87 37.5
45-54 | 62 263

55-64 | 23 9.9

65+ 1 0.4

TOTAL | 232 100

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 .luIyA 2015 continued

Internal organisation and policies continued

Directorate structure and staff numbers continued

. | Age ' 16-24 | 6 2.3
Males ' , .25-34 | 47 [ 17.7
) 35-44 | 95 |35.7
4554 | 69 | 25.9
55-64 | 45 | 16.9
| 65+ |4 1.5
Total | 266 | 100

Jiscis in the process of collecting full diversity data in a consistent way across the entire workforce.
People and development

~ The aim is to create a productive and supportive environment where the contributions of all staff are recognised
and valued and everyone has an equal chance to succeed. A key part of this commitment is creating and
maintaining a positive work environment where everyone can make their contribution with confidence. The
objective is a working environment that encourages all employees to fulfil their potential and be confldent that
any problems that might arise will be resolved promptly and fairly.

'A key element of this is ensuring effective communication across the organisation and a number of channels and
initiatives exist to support this. Work is undertaken closely with staff and their representatives, including our
trade union to ensure that the best proposition can be offered for staff, customers and funders. ‘

Diversity is highly valued and applications are welcomed from all sections of the community for our roles. In line
with this policies and procedures have been developed and implemented to ensure that fair and transparent
recruitment and selection processes are in place that meet equality.and diversity principles. All recruitment takes
place on the basis of fair and open competition. All disabled candidates for roles who meet the essential criteria
are selected for interview in line with our commitment to equality and the Equality Act 2010. Adjustments will be
made to the selection arrangements wherever possible to accommodate any applicant who would otherwise be
unable to apply To support this the make-up. ofthe workforce is monitored to ensure that the commitment is
reflected in practice.

As an employer Jisc will not discriminate unfairly against any person and we have implemented policies and
procedures to ensure that this is implemehted in practice. Where an employee becomesiill or disabled during the
course of their employment we will identify and implerhent, wherever possible and appropriate, any reasonable
adjustments that need to be made to the workplace or job in order for the staff member to contribute fully to our
work and remain in employment. Where this is not possible the individual will be supported and managed on'a
case by case basis with dugmty and respect.
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued ‘

Internal organisation and policies continued
People and development continued

A core set of employment policies are in place and these are periodically reviewed to ensure that they meet the
needs of a developing organisation in line with emponment’IegisIa'tion. A range of training and development
opportunities are supported and specific training is provided to all managers on our performance management
processes. This is underpinned by supporting tools and guidance for both managers and staff. A range of support
for staff in relation to development and to support health and well-being is also available, indqding an employee
assistance programme and occupational health advice. Work on our policies, procedures and training will
continue in light of learning and experience, and improvements to these services are welcomed.

A series of policies for staff are maintained as follows:
e Anti-bribery and corruption policy
e Career break policy
e Data protection policy
‘e Designated home workers policy
e Disciplinary policy and procedure
e Equality and diversity policy
‘e Flexible working policy
e Grievance policy
e Health and safety policy
e Induction policy and proceddre
e Lone workihg policy
. Managem.ent of probationary periods
e Maternity, paternity and adoption leave poiicy
e Prevention of harassment and bullying policy
e Special leave policy '
e Whistleblowing policy

Health, Safety and Environmental Committee

A Health and Safety Committee is chaired by Professor Noel Lloyd, a previous Jisc trustee and retired Vice
Chancellor, Aberystwyth University. A Jisc Group Health and Safety Manager oversees the Health and Safety
policy and an action plan, and the committee ensures these are reviewed on an appropriate timescale. Jisc has an
* objective to ensure that all staff carry out their duties as safely as possible and are not exposed to any unacceptable
risks. Training is provided for all staff via an e-learning platform on fire safety awareness and manual handling
training, and completionis mandatory. '
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Ti'ustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

“Internal organisation and policies continued

Financial policies
Treasury

A treasury management policy is in place and reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management committee annually.
The most important consideration is security. Neither Jisc nor its’ subsidiaries have a requirement for éxternal
bdrrowings. Any borrowings are not permitted to be taken out without the prior consent from HEFCE under the
terms of the grant funding agreement. .

C r¢dit risk

The lJisc group's activities.are primarily with state-funded education and research bodies and, as such, has
minimum credit risk. Jisc Commercial Limited’s activities will be with bodies with good credit ratings.

Liquidity risk
Jisc ensures that there are sufficient cash balances to meet day-to-day needs of the organisation.
Reserves

The board reviews the reserves of the charitable company each year to determine the level of funds required to
invest in future developments and the amounts to be distributed by way of educational research. The board has
determined that the Group should maintain unrestricted reserves of at least four months of operational costs.
The.Jisc Reserves Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit and Risk Ménagement committee and any changes
recommended to the board. ‘

On 31 July 2015 the unrestricted reserves of the Jisc Group were £87.9m (charltable company: £77.6m) of which
£42.7 million was held within designated funds (charitable company: £16.4m). )

In order to comply with the requirements of Charities SORP 2005, grants are accounted for ona commitments
basis (where a commitment to another party has been communicated in a sufficiently specific manner to raise a
‘valid expectation on the part of the recipient that the amount will be received and any conditions associated with
the grant fall outside of control of Jisc). The value of funds committed to third parties at 31 July 2015 is included

within creditors in the financial statements in Notes 15 and 16.

The total funds which are not restricted nor designated for specific purposes are £45.2m as at 31 July 2015. A full
analysis of the fund is shown in the financial statements in Note 19.

The restricted funds of the Group relate to the surplus of recognlsed income over expendlture of capital and
specific project funding.
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‘Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Internal organisation and policies continued .

Grant-making policies

In some cases, Jisc provides grants to organisations to provide servicés on its behalf. Grants are managed through
specific agreements, which set out the conditions of the grant, including reporting requirements and when and
how disclosure will happen. The agreement also outlines Jisc's responsibilities. Grants are usually disbursed in
instalments to ensure that agreed timings and results are being met and ma'na‘ged Jisc staff, monitor and evaluate
progress throughout the period of the grants. The nature of these activities will depend on the size and complexity
of the grant and the perceived level of risk.

Responsibilities of the Board in relation to the Trustees’ Report

The trustees (who are also directors of Jisc for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the
‘Trustees’ Annual Report (including the Strategic Report) and the financial statements in accordance with
- applicable law and regulations. ‘

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
trustees have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of the affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources and application of

. resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charltable company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the trustees are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

¢ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; :

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the
group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charitable company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may dlfferfrom
Ieguslatlon in other jurisdictions. '

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 - 27



JiSC k- ‘ Jisc Trustees’ Report a'hd Financial Statements
: : Year ended 31 July 2015

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued-

Responsibilities of the Board in relation to the Trustees'Report continued

The Trustees’ responsibilities régarding the HEFCE grant reporting

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that all terms of The Funding Agreement have been complied with or

varied in writing'with HEFCE. The trustees are also responsible for providing relevant financial information to
HEFCE. - ‘

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
In so far as each of the trustees are aware:
e thereis no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditors are unaware; and

.e each trustees has taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Jisc Services Limited (previously Jisc Collections and Janet Limited; company number 02881024)

Jisc Services Limited (previously Jisc Collections and Janet Limited) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jisc. During
2014-15, Jisc reviewed the approach to delivering services to its customers to optimise the efficienéy and
effectiveness of its structure. In March 2015, internal changes were effected which resulted in some activity -
previously delivered through Jisc Collections and Janet Limited being transferred to Jisc itself under a Business"
Transfer Agreement (see note 30). Jisc Collections and Janet Limited was renamed Jisc Services Limited and new
Articles of Association were created. Jisc and Jisc Services Limited share a mUtuality of interest to support Jisc's
charitable objectives, subject to implémentation of UK GAAP and the applicable Charities SORP.

A small number of staff and some activities remained in Jisc Services Limited, where there was a clear benefit for
these to do so. Jisc Services Limited optimises the legal structure so that our work for our sectors sits in the charity,
~and that we have two subsidiaries with suitable separatibn from the charity to facilitate the operation of the VAT
Cost Sharing Group, to ensure we manage tax appropriately, and to carry out commercial income generation
activity. This structure will place Jisc in the best position to deal with the challenges and exploit the opportunities
of the future. The full objects of the company can be found in the Jisc Services Limited Annual Report and Financial
Statements 2014-15. '

Governance

In order to ensure appropriate and coherent gbvernance of lisc's subsidiary company when it operated as Jisc
Collections and Janet Limited, the Jisc_board'acted as the board of Jisc Collections and Janét Limited. In line with
Charity Commission guidance, there were some differences in the directors of Jisc and those of Jisc Collections
and Janet Limited. When the company changes were enacted in March 2015, the Jisc board resigned as the board
of Jisc Collections and Janet Limited. A new board, comprised of members. of Jisc's Executive Team, were
- appointed. ' ' . :

The following are the directors of Jisc Services Limited from 19 March 2015 (unless stated otherwise):

' Professor Martyn Harrow, Jisc Chief Executive (until 19 October 2015)
Ms Alice Colban, Jisc Chief Operating Officer and Deputy Chief Executive (Company Secretary)
Dr Paul Feldman, Jisc Chief Executive (from 19 October 2015)
Mr Robert Haymon-Collins, Jisc Executive director, Custorﬁer Experience
Mr Timothy Kidd, jisc Executive‘dir.ector, Jisc Technologies (from 2 Ma.y 2015)
Dr Phil Richards, Jisc Chief Innovation.Officer .

Mr Mark Wright, Jisc Chief Financial Officer (a director of Jisc Collections and Janet Limited from and
therefore a continuing director through the company changes)

Company Secretary: Ms Alice Colban
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Jisc Services Limited (previously Jisc Collections and Janet Limited; company number 02881024)
continued '

Governance continued

The following were directors between 1 A~ugust 2014 and 19 March 2015:

Professor Robin Baker, OBE - Director and Chief Executive, Ravensbourne (until 7 January 2015)
Professor Chris Brink - Vice Chancellor, Newcastle University (until 8 January 2015)
Ms Lorraine Estelle, Executive director, Digital Resources (until 19 March 2015)

Professor Philip Gummett, CBE —retired Chief Executive, Higher Education Funding Council for Wales (until
19 March 3015) ) :

Professor Martin Hall - Vice Chancellor, University of Salford (until 19 Mar;h 2015)

Professor Paul Layzell - Principal, Royal Holloway University of London (until 19 March 2015) -
Professor Noel Lloyd CBE — Retired Vice Cha ncellor, AberystWyth University (until 30 November 2014)
Ms Heather MacDonald — Chief Executive, The Sheffield College (until 19 March 2015)

Professor David Maguire — Vice Chancellor, Unfversity> of Greenwich (until 19 March 2015)

Mr Timothy‘Marshall, Executive director, JiscAT_echnoIogies (until 25 November 2014)

Préfessor Nigel Seaton — Principal and Vice Chancellor, Abertay University (from 28 January 2015 until 1g
March 2015) ‘ : o

Professor Mark Smith —Vice Chancellor, Lancaster University (from 10 December 2014 until 19 March 2015)
Dr Ken Thomson — Principal, Forth Valley College (from g December 2014 until 19 March 2015)
Professor Anne Trefethen — Chief Information Officer, University of Oxford (until 19 March 2015) -

Mr Mark Wright, Chief Financial Officer (continuing as a director of Jisc SeNices Limited)

As trustees, the directors of Jisc have a dthy to exercise oversight of Jisc Services Limited in order to safeguard,
promote and achieve the charitable objectives of Jisc. In discharge of that duty, a Management and Supervision
Agreement sets out how Jisc Services Limited will carry on its business. This Agreement exists to guide the working
practices between Jisc and Jisc Services Limited and in no way compromises the fiduciary duties of the directors
of Jisc Services Limited under the Companies Act 2006. '

With the business re-organisation, Jisc Services Limited transferred part of its business, assets and staff to Jisc
under a Business Transfer Agreement with an effective date of 1 April 2015. In order to carry on the business
retained by Jisc Services Limited and other future activities, Jisc Services Limitedlrequires access to certain
services, resources and facilities. A Memorandum of Understanding exists to describe the services that Jisc will
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Trustees’ Report forthe year ended 31 July 2015 contlnued

- Jisc Serwces Limited (previously Jisc Collections and Janet Limited; company number 02881024) .
continued

“provide to Jisc Services Limited in this regard, and the services that JISC Services Limited undertakes to deliver to
Jisc’s customers on behalf of Jisc.

Principal activities of Jisc Services Limited

The activities that are delivered by Jisc Services Limited on behalf of Jisc primarily fall into two categories: some
aspects of the Jisc network and technolog'y services; and the licensing, subscriptions, publishing services and .
legacy Jisc Collections services. These services are delivered through Jisc Services L|m|ted to ensure the Jisc
group supports the VAT cost’ shanng group and manages tax approprlately

"This is not an exhaustive list of the activities of Jisc Services Limited and further activities may be added to the

1 portfolio of services at the request of Jisc as necessary to ensure that the group continues to operate effectively.
Jié_c mayAfrom timeto time contract with third parties and will require Jisc Services Limited to perform certain
“services as its sub-contractor in order to fulfil those contracts: o '

Business review and future developments

“In the context of Jisc Services Limited as an integral part of the Jisc group, the business review and future
“idevelopments are described in the Jisc Strategic Report section from page 34 and in the Jisc Services Limited
Annual Report and Financial Stetemen_ts 2014-15.
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Jisc Commercial Limited (company number 09316933)

Trading as “Jiscom”, thls new part of the Jisc group (mcorporated on 18 November 2014) helps to ensure that the
services we provide to our customers remain high quality and competitive. It opens up the benefits of publlc
investment in digital technologies to a range of UK organisations, sectors and public enterprises. In doing so,
Jiscom will help us to achieve our vision to make the UK the most digitally advanced education and research
nationin the world

Through Jiscom, theJisc group is building on Jisc's reputation for affordable, practical business solutions and
providing new customers with the mfrastructure, digital assets and quality of service that education and research
benefit from every day.

Governance

. The Jiscom Articles of Associationspecify that the Jiscom board includes two directors who are either employees
or directors of Jisc, three directors who are not employees or directors of Jisc and other Non-Executive Directors
to bring appropriateexperience and knowledge as deemed necessary.

The followmg are the directors of Jisc Commercial Limited from |ncorporat|on of the company on 18 November
2014 (unless stated otherwuse)

Professor David Maguire, Vice Chancellor, Umver5|ty of Greenwich and Jisctrustee (Non- Executlve Director
and Chair of Jiscom until 15 May 2015) :

Professor Paul Layzell, Principal, Royal Holloway University of London and Jisc trustee (Non-Executive
Director until 14 May 2015 and chair of Jiscom since 15 May 2015) ’

Professor Mark Smith, Vice Chancellor, Lancaster Uhiversity and Jisc trustee (fror'o 1 June 2.'015)
Mr Timothy Marshall, Jiscom Chief Executive (Executivo director) -

Mr Stuart Curzon (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Philip Male (Non-Executive Director from 19 January 2015)

Mr Tim Wright (Non-Executive Director)

Company Secretary: Ms Alice Colban
Principal activities of Jisc Commercial Limited

Jiscom offers the core products developed by Jisc and used effectively by Jisc’s core customers to a wider
range of public or private enterprises. Jiscom’s purpose is to maximise the public investment made in Jisc
services; making them available to a wider customer base that will deliver a financial contribution to
support the running of Jisc and its services.
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Trusfees’ Report for the year ended 31 July 2015 continued

Jisc Commercial Limited (company number 09316933) continued
Principal activities of Jisc Commercial Limited continued -

Jiscom has established its own risk appetite. The guiding princible is that as a new company Jiscom needs to
have an appetite for risk that reflects its commercial objectives and position as a new company whilst not
materlally increasing the risk exposure of the registered charity parent company. The Jiscom risk management
process has been derived by reference to the Jisc risk management framework. A strategic risk register has been
developed and is monitored regularly

Business review and future developments

Jiscom is a relatively new development. The pipeline and opportunities are growing rapidly, a clear company

strategy has been developed and aligned with Jisc to ensure the activities remain focused on targeting the right
. opportunities, not compromising Jisc’s private network status and ensuring the uninterrupted high quality
service is delivered to the existing customer base. ‘

_Jiscomrhas a clear indication of the addressable markets and the revenues associated with each, which should
allow the company to deliver against its target contributions through the rest of 2015/2016 and into 2016/17.

Signed on behalf of the board: -

Professor David Maguire, Jisc Chair

25 November 2015
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Strategic Report

The trustees present their strategic report for the year ending 31 July 2015.

- Vision: To make the UK the most digitally advanced education and research nation in the
world. .

‘Mis"s'ivon- To e'néble peoplé in higher educatibn further eduvcation and skills in tl—'\e'UKAto ﬁé'rforrh""
~atthe forefront of mternatlonal practice by exploutmg fully the possibilities of modern dlgstal
'empowerment content and connectuvnty

Achievements and Performance

The Jisc strategic framework describes how Jisc delivers against ten impact areas in support of Jisc’s vision and
mission. This is a cogent statement for customers regarding the purpose of Jisc, capabilities, commitments,
priorities and values in terms of what and how Jisc will deliver for them. Delivery of the ten impact areas form the
foundation for the operating plans of each directorate. The ten impact areas are represented in the diagram
below: :

Research enablement j
Vision C
s Mission , ~ Learning, teaching and the digital student experience
Sector and enterprise efficiency
Core principle: ( T
deep ustomer engagement // Collaboration and internationalisation

platforms g {

_ ' / Open agenda }
Digital Digital Digital f

technologies resources futures a Data and analytics ]
) (

3 Digital translation and transformation from other sectors J
[ paciHareas) {

Ten areas where our customers will benefit from Jisc's support Institutional and academic leadership in the digital age ]
L

Cyber security and access and identity management (AfM)
- - - {
Steutagic anablars and valuas
. ) ? . Y * . Digital standards and policies at UK/ European/ international Ievel]
People and : ITand N Finance and Culture and -
organisation quonna}ion _ .operations . “identity )
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Strategic R’eport continued

Achievements and Performance continued

Alongside the ten external-facing impact areas exist strategic enablers and values, which are primarily-internally-
facing priorities that are crucial in creating a single conceptual organisation, enabling Jisc to not only operate’
effectively but also effectively-deliver sector/customer prlontles The strategic enablers are centred around the
‘following four key areas:

e . People and organisétidn

¢ Information Management and IT’
e Finance and operations

e  Culture and identity

Key performance indicators

Jisc has provided a report every 6 months to its funders on progress in meeting the key priorities outlined in the

JISC funding letter. Jisc has provided a range of tailored reports to specific funders and sectors addressing key

‘ performance indicators set by individual funders. Service levels with our customers exist for our core services
which are reported against. Our innovation pipeline shows the range of projects in development and the
different stages of the development process and target service Iaunch dates We measure our own. performance

- thoroughly. We report our performance on factors such as the value, savmgs and efficiencies we generate—both
in absolute terms, and in terms of the return on the fuhding that we receive.

Given the nature of the business and the way in which it'is managed, the Trustees are of the opinion that analysis
using standard financial KPls is not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of .the development,
performance or position of the business. A variety of indicators are measured, including relevant financial and
op-erational indicators such as % variance forecast outturn against budget, in order to ensure operational
efficiency as well as to ensure that appropriate service levels are being met.

Jisc Services Limited Business Transfer Agreement

Jisc Services Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jisc. In March 2015, internal changes were effected which

resulted in some activity previously delivered through the vehicle of Jisc Collections and Janet Limited being

transferred to Jisc itself. Jisc Services Limited transferred part of its business, assets and staff to Jisc under a
Business Transfer Agreement with an effective date of 1 April 2015. In order to carry on the business retained by

Jisc Services Limited and other future activities, Jisc Services Limited requires access to certain services, resources

and facilities. AMemorandum of Understanding exists to describe the services that Jisc will provide to Jisc Services

Limitedin this regard, and the services that Jisc Services Limited undertakes to deliver to Jisc's customers on behalf

of Jisc. Further information can be found in the Jisc Services Limited section on page 29.
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Strategic Report continued |

Financial Performance and Strategy

Jisc is committed to ensuring that, in all that it does, it is accountable to all its stakeholders, including funders,
members, customers, staff and any project partner with whom it works. Success in achieving this commitment
to accountability is measured through Funders and Owners meetings, Stakeholder meetings and internally '
through the Internal Audit programme.

Jisc has adopted a clear and prudent financial approach since Jisc's transformation into a corporate body in
December 2012 in preparation for financial reductions from core funders and the introduction of a Jisc
“subscription from 2014-15, in higher education at least. The prudent approach is demonstrated to be essential
when considering Jisc’s financial forecast for the commg year. -

This approach has led to the foIIowing financial position at 31 July 201s.

Total income for the year was £137.9m (2014: £161.0m). This comprises £118.3m and £19.6m of
unrestricted funds and restricted funds respectively (2014: £125.4m and £35.6m respectively).

Income of £39.2m (2014: £58.4m) was core funding received from the devolved countries funding bodies

- for higher and further education. Income from charitable activities, which includes funding that flows
through from Jisc into Jisc Collections and Janet Limited (now Jisc Services Limited), was £97.5m (2014
£101.9m). Interest and other income was £1.2m (2014 £0.7m). :

Total resources expended in the year was £128.9m and consequently there was a net increase in funds in
the year of £9.0m (2014: £25.0m). Of this increase, £5.om related to restrlcted funds and £4.0mrelated

to unrestricted activities. -

The in-year expenditure is made up of £128.1m (2014: £109.0m) expended on charitable acti\/ities, with
the balance being grants of £9.7m and governance costs of £1.am.

The breakdown of the expenditure on charitable activities is:

Digital infrastructure and technology £59.9mM
Digital resources £39.0m
Digital Futures . . £5.7m
Value realisation _ £13.1mM
Fundraising trading (Jiscom) . £0.4m
Total : £118.1m
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Strategic Report continued

Financial Performance and Strategy continued

Restricted Funds

Jisc has consolidated restricted income funds of £26.5m. These funds, which are subject to special terms
specified by the grantors can only be used for the purpose to which they are given and the trustees fully intend to
utilise these funds. They do not form part of Jisc's reserves available for day to day use. Jisc sets aside cash to
cover these funds.

Unrestricted funds

The starting point for assessing the amount of-reserves held of any charity, including Jisc is normally the amount
of unrestricted funds held. Part of the unrestricted funds of a charity, however, may not always be readily
available for spending. These are: '

e Tangible fixed assets: the Charities SORP specifically allows funds held as tangible fixed assets for charity
use to be excluded from unrestricted reserves. This recognizes that certain assets will.be used
operationally and their disposal may adversely impact on a charity's ability to deliver its aims.

e Programme-related investments: where a charity makes programme- related investments solely to
further its charitable purposes, then such investments can be excluded from unrestricted reserves.

o Designated funds: where unrestricted funds are earmarked or designated for essential future spending,
for example, to fund a project that could not be met from future income alone they can be excluded from
unrestricted reserves. For Jisc on a consolidated basis, at 31 July 2015, these elements amounted to:

- Tangible fixed assets £24.1m
- Programme-related investments £6.1m

- Other designated Funds of £12.5 m, being-a pensions contribution fund of £10.4m, and a
transition/transformation fund of £2.21m.

The balance of Jisc's unrestricted funds is £45.2m and is Jisc’s general reserve. This is broken down betweéen a
short-term self-funding buffer of four months required to cover operations in the event that normal funding
receipts were delayed which equates to £38.12m, and the balance of £7.1m, which represents funds available for
future priorities.

The consolidated unrestricted reserve increase (surplus) before transfers in the year stands at £4.0m (3.4% of
unrestricted income). '
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Strategic Report continued

Financial Performance and Strategy continued

Cash

The Group's cash position for 31 July 2015 stands at £67.2m (2014: £§8.7m), excluding restricted funds. The need
for £50.6 m of this is made up of the 4 months cover of £38.1m plus £12.5m for the pension and transition
elements of the designated funds.

2015/16 Budget
A Budget has been approved by the Board for Jisc for the 2015/16 year.

An overall deficit of £9.4m is predicted for 2015-16. This has two major components. Expenditure.‘exceeding
income by £9.8m on restricted activities is as'a consequence of Jisc spending against previously recognised
income. It is therefore a timing effect and reflects a catching up of deferred projects. The second éomponent,
the £0.4m surplus on unrestricted activities indicates that Jisc would be operating at close to break-even in this
area.

Financial Forecast

A financial forecast has been prepared that also looks ahead to 2019-20. It assumes income in 2016-17 to 2019-
20 will be in line with that in 2015-16. Whilst such a forecast may be unrealistic given the current financial
uncertainty, the figures demonstrate the need to operate extremely prudently in 2015-16 and justify the
approach adopted since 2012. Even with the above assumption on income, Jisc’s funds available for new
priorities declines throughout the forecast period, despite significant savings and efficiencies being incorporated
within the forecast. This is of concern given the need for Jisc to provide essential infrastructure services to
universities and colleges which they depend on to operate.

The forecast is an initial step in Jisc formally preparing a set of strategic respohses against a range of future
funding scenarios. Jisc will be working to develop further medium term projections and models. It should be
noted that the financial forecast has, in addition to the secured savings to date, further identified forecast
savings and efficiencies. Any slippage on these will have a direct impact on Jisc, reserves and funding available
for.new priorities.

Plans for Future Periods

“Jisc will continue to develop to ensure that Jisc remains a trusted partner, a source of expertise and advice, and
continues to provide a world class range of high quality services for customers. In 2015-16, Jisc will continue to
work to deliver against the ten impact areas and strategic enablers identified in the strategic framework (see
diagramon page 34). . ‘
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Strategic Report continued

Plans for Future Periods continued

Planned developments from Jisc in the-next year include:

i)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

viii)

Alearning analytics shared service —helping institutions boost retention rates and improve the student
experience. Projected return of c. £20m per annum. '

A better infrastructure and shared service for business intelligence, including redevelopment of the
existing HEIDI data service and a platform for universities to link HESA data with their own datasets,
support cost benchmarking and collaborate on the development of new methods of analysis.
Projected return of £3.75m over the next 5 years.

A shared datacentre in the north, to deliver efficiencies for institutions that choose to make use of the
shared service. '

A suite of solutions, building on existing work, to help institutions comply with open access
requirements in support of both funder mandates and'HEFCE's own policy, and to reduce the costs
and burden of compliance.

~ Brokering new procurement deals to enable universities to buy the software solutions most used

across the sector at lower cost; a potential for further savings of em's.
Brokering of better value insurance of institutional hardware, software and data.
Support for college mergers to deliver significant efficiency savings through technology.

Proven approach to shared corporate systems in FE (Jisc in a box) to deliver efficiencies.

In the longer term, planned developments include:

i)

i)

Aiii)

iv)

Scoping out a new set of shared non-academic corporate applications (Finance, HR etc.) which would
remove duplication of efforts and could deliver an saving of more than £100m per annum.

Shifting institutional data storage to cloud/phasing out of wasteful institutional data centres, with

potential saving of more than £200m per annum.

A shared service for research data management that offers support for data creation and sharing
during the active research process, and that provides the curation services to responsibly archive data
in the longer term, reducing costs and duplication in the sector. '

Further analytics development to inform a national shared service and exploration of possible shared
next generation learning platform; delivering both savings and enhanced quality. -
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Strategic Report continued

Plans for Future Periods continued

V) Scoping and delivering a shared, digital only platform for monographs.

vi) Review of the Janet6 network and options for future delivery of an education and research network in
the context of technological developments.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks for Jisc are considered under five headings: .

i.  Governance and funding
a. Collap;e in the UK's ‘corporate model’ of funding, via, for example, BIS and HEFCE beyond 2015 _
b. Ongoing financial pressure on institutions and the shift in the business model from mandated to
voluntary subscriptions from 2017 onwards and potential breakaway by some institutions
ii.  Stakeholders and customers = ‘
a. Case for Jisc not made effectively to all Jisc stakeholders but especially institutions
b. Lack of understanding, belief, trust, sponsorship and support with key players across multiple
: stakeholders including the corridors of power (Whitehall and the devolved nations), not built.
iii.  Products and services '
a. lJisc does not offer the appropriate breadth of technology expertise, infrastructure or digital
services that customers expect |
b. lJisc is not able to maintain the relevance of its services in a rapidly changmg environment -
particularly in the area of schoIarIy communications and open access
c. Insufficient new and pertinent innovation to justify Jisc's value in the medium to long term
iv.  Internal resources
' a. Failure to carry through the continued re- proﬁlmg, portfolio tumng, customer-centric culture and
integration of Jisc fast enough and certainly enough v
" b. Failure to provide an integrated information management approach and IT systems across Jisc .
Failure to govern Jiscom appropriately leading to a negative impact on services to our core
A customers : ' ‘ '
v.  Externalissues .
a. Other bodies, private and public seek to enter Jisc's space, especially in terms of digital territory -
b. Cabinet Office considers the education & research network (Jisc's network, Janet) to be an
appropriate backbone to use to deliver to other public bodies, leading to potential loss of control
“of and negative impact on education and research sectors

There is a formal risk management framework in place. The framework allows.assessment of strategic and
operational risks and the implementation of risk management strategies. The framework also includes a risk
appetite, in the context of Jisc’s approach to “well-managed risk taking”. A range of mitigations are in place to
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manage the corporate risks outlined above and these are reviewed on a regular basis by the Executive Group, Audit
and Risk Management.committee and board.

Signed on behalf of the board:

Professor David Maguire, Jisc Chair

25 Novermber 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members and Trustees of Jisc

Report on the financial statements
Our opinion

. In ouropinion the financial statements, defined below:

give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company’s affairs as at 31 July 2015 and
of the group’s and parent charitable company's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited

The group financial statements and parent charitable company financial statements (the “financial statements”), which are
prepared by Jisc, comprise: '

the group and parent charitable compa ny balance sheet as at 31 July 2015;

the group statements of ﬁnanaal activities and the group summary income and expenditure account for the year then
ended;

the group cash ﬂow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting pqucnes and other
explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the trustees have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events.

WhHhat an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & IreIand)”) An
audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of:

whether the accountlng policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent charitable company s circumstances and
have been consistently applled and adequately disclosed; -

the reasonableness of 5|gn|f|cant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

-In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Jisc Trustees’ Report and Financial Statements to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the umphcanons for our
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members and Trustees of Jisc continued

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Co'mpanies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report, including the Strategic Report, for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the informatien and explanations we require for our audit; or
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not VISIted by us; or '
e the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. ’
- We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsnblluty '
- Trustees' remuneration

" Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of trustees’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Opinions on other matters prescribed in the HEFCE Audit Code of Practices |ssued
under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992

In our opinion, in all material respects:

e funds from whatever source administered by the parent charitable company for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and, if relevant, managed in accordance with relevant legislation; and
e funds provided by HEFCE have been applied in accordance with the terms and conditions attached to them.

RespOhsibiIities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement, the trustees are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and expres§ an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity’s members and trustees as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save here expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Stephen Pascie (Senior Statutory Audutor) .

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
.Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading

27 /\{oyo,mlau’ 2015
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Consohdated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ending 31 JuIy
2015 (lncludlng income and expenditure account)

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Note fund - fund’ 2015 . 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Incoming resources ‘
Incoming resources from generated funds
Voluntary income ) . v
Corefunding - . 2 29,626 9,570 39,196 58,400
Investment income
Interest received " 374 - 374 423
Incoming resources from charitable ) .
activities .
Funding . "3 46,695 9,013 55,708 60,269
Primary purpose trading 3 40,774 1,039 41,813 41,660
Other incoming resources
Otherincome 786 786 259
Total incoming resources 118,255 19,622 137,877 161,011
Resources expended
Charitable activities )
Digital infrastructure and technology 4 51,638 8,236 59,874 65,044
Digital content and discovery 4 36,520 2,525 39,045 31,619
Futures 4 4,162 1,492 5,654 5,723
Value realisation 4 13,152 1 13,153 6,593
Fundraising trading; cost of goods sold and . 363 - 363 -
other costs
Grants : . s 7,390 2,337 9,727 25902
Governance costs ] 7 © 1,060 ) - 1,060 1,102
Tax - ) - - (23)
Total resources expended ' 114,285 14,591 - 128,876 -~ 135,960
Net incoming resources before transfers . 3,970 5,031 . 9,001 25,051
Transfers /
Gross transfers between funds 4,656 ] (4,656) B -
Net movement in funds . - - 8,626 375 9,001 25,051
Reconciliation of funds )
Fund balances brought fon/vard at1 August _ 79,242 26,084 105,326 80,275
2014 . R :
Fund balances carried forwa rd at 31 July . 87,868 26,459 | 114,327 105,326
2015 - :
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. . -

All results in the year to 31 July 2015 and in the prior year derive of continuing operations.

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses for the year and includes the income and expenditure of the group.
There is no material difference between the net movement in funds above and the historical cost equivalent.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2015

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Total fixed assets
Current assets

Debtors -
Cash at bank and in hand

Total current assets

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year .

Provision for liabilities and charges
Total current liabilities
Net current assets
. Total aésets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Net assets
The funds of the charify:
Restricted funds -

Unrestricted funds

Total charity funds

11
12

14

15
17

16

18

19

As at . Asat

31/07/2015 - 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000
9,497 12,352
15,463 . 15,281

24,960 26,633
28,077 25,567
93,655 84,760
121,732 110,327
32,365 - 29,832

- 1,484
32,365 31,316
89,367 79,011
114,327 105,644

- . . 318-
114,327 105,326
26,459 26,084,
87,868 79,242
114,327 105,326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 44 to 73 were approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Chief Executive
25 November 2015

Registered number: 05747339
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A

Charitable Company Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2015

Note As at As at
31/07/2015 31/07/2014
‘£'000 £'000
Fixed assets )
Tangible assets . : 12 3,257 1,861
Investments 13 25,389 25,139
Total fixed assets ) i 28,646 ) 27,000
Current assets
Debtors ’ 14 24,186 31,309
Cash at bank and in hand 61,181 43,367
Total current assets S 85,367 - 74,676
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year - 15 ' 22,543, 25,214
Provisions for liabilities an_'d charges 17 ' - 1,484
Tofal current liabilities ' . 22,543 26,698
Net current assets ‘ ' 62,824 . 47,978
Total assets less current liabilities ' ) 91,470 74,978
Net assets . 91,470 74,978 '
The funds of the charity:
Restricted income funds 18 13,910 : 7,748
Unrestricted income funds ’ 19 77,560 67,230
Total charity funds ] 91,470 . © 74,978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

_ Thefinancial statements on pages 44 to 73 were approved by the Board and signed on its behaif by:

Chief Executive
25 November 2015
Registered number: 05747339
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| Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the yeér ended 31 July 2015

. 2015 2014
Note £'000 £'000 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 23 17,318 32,674
Returns on investments and servicing of finance ‘ b
. Interest received ] . 374 ) 423
Capital expenditure and financial investment )
Purchase of tangible fixed assets ' (8,797) (5,227)
Purchase of intangible assets - (2,967)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure . . (8,797). (8,194)
.Increase in cashin fhe year 23 8,895 24,903
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015

1. Principal accounting policies

a)  Basis of accounting and consolidation

The Group financial statements are prepared under the provision of the large and medium- 5|zed Companles and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410), applicable Accounting Standard in the United
Kingdom, and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP 2005) “Accounting and Reporting by Charities —
Statement of Recommend Practice”, and have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
the Charities Act 2011 and are prepared on a going concern basis under the historic cost convention. A summary
of the more important Group accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out below.

The charitable company has taken the exemptlon from publishing.a charity only statement of financial actlwty as
permitted under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated statement of financial activities includes the financial activities of the charity and its subsidiary
undertakings up to 31 July 2015. Intra-group transactions are eliminated fully on consolidation. .

b)  Fundstructure - : ’
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the donor,
such as where funding is for specific projects or is capital in nature. '

_ Unrestricted funds comprise those funds which the charity is free to use for any purpose in furtherance of the
charitable objects. Unrestricted funds include designated funds where the trustees, at their discretion, have
created a fund for a.speaflc purpose.’

Q) Incoming resources
In the statement of financial activity, income is split between income received from activities for generatlng

funds and income from charitable activities.

Income from activities for generating funds includes voluntary income and interest and is included on the
statement of financial activities on a receivable basis, when Jisc is entitled to the income, it is certain that the
income will be received and the income can be reliably measured.

Voluntary income includes grants from government which provide core funding and are general in nature.

Income from charitable activities represents amounts receivable for-goods and services provided, recognised
when the group has entitlement to funds, there is certainty of receipt and the amount can be quantified. This is
split into grants received for specific activities, including capital grants and the income received by the’
subsidiaries’ trading activities. o

Income is deferred where services or goods issued to beneficiaries have not been or are partially provided. |
addition performance-related grants that are conditional upon the dellvery ofa SpECIfIC level of serV|ce have
been deferred where the conditions had not yet been met.
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

1. Principal accounting policies continued

Grants that are capital in nature are recognised in accordarice with the terms of relevant agreement and when
either expendlture is incurred, or if an approved plan is already in place and the expectation of receipt is certain,
or cash is received, whichever is soonest. '

d)  Resources expended

Liabilities are recognised as resources expended as soon as there is a legal or contractual obligation committing
the charity to the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified
under headings that aggregate all costs relating to that category of activity within the group.

Grants payable are payments made to third parties in the furtherance of the charitable objects of the company.
Single or multi-year grants are accounted for when either the recipient has a reasonable expectation that they
will receive a grant and the company agrees to pay the grant without conditions, or the conditions attached to
the grant are outside the control of the company. '

e) Irrecoverable VAT _
Is charged against the expenditure category of resources expended for which it was incurred. -

) Allocatlon of overhead and support costs
Overhead and support costs have been allocated over the costs ofdlrect staff assocnated with the actlwty

g)  Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
All assets are capitalised and recorded at historic cost including any incidental costs of acquisition.

Where appropriate, p‘rovision has been made for impairment in the value of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis to w‘ri'te‘ off the cost of the tangible fixed assets over their
estimated useful life. '

e Fixtures and fittings - 10 years
e Office equipment -3 years

e Office furniture —10 years

o Website — 5 years

e Network equipment — 3 years

h)  Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Goodwill is the difference between the fair value of the con5|derat|on paid and the fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired. It is capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis through the Statement of Financial
Activities over g years.

Electronfc content.s capitalibseél at historic cost and amortisation is charged on a straight line basis over 10 years
from the date of the contract.

Where appropriate, a provision has been made for impairment in the value of intangible fixed assets.
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1. Principal accounting policies Continued

i) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less provision for impairment.
i Pensions

Employees of the charity are entitled to join the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS), a multi-employer
defined benefit pension scheme. Employees with entitlements under TUPE may receive benefits through an
. alternative scheme. (See note 26). All contributions are charged to the SOFA as incurred.

The institution participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS), a defined benefit scheme which is
contracted out of the State Second Pension (52P). The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee-
administered fund. Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the scheme’s assets are not hypothecated to
individual institutions and a scheme-wide contribution rate is set. The institution is therefore exposed to
actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is unable to identify its share of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as reqUiréd by FRS
17 “"Retirement benefits”, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result,
the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contrlbutlons payable to the scheme
in respect of the accounting period.

k) Contingent Iiabilities

In accordance with SORP coritingent liabilities are disclosed for those grants, which do-not represent liabilities,
but where there is a possible obligation, which arises from past events, which will only be confirmed by one or
more future events, not wholly within the trustees’ control. '

) Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the SOFA as incurred over the term of the lease on a

straight line basis.

m)  Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of
the transaction. Forelgn currency. balances are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date.

n) ' Provisions

Provisions for future liabilities are recogriised when Jisc has a Iegal or constructive obligation that can be rellably
estimated and for which there is an expectatlon that payment will be made
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

2. Voluntary income

During the year to 31 July 2615 £39,196k (2014: £58,400Kk) of core funding, .was‘received from the devolved
countries’ funding bodies for higher and further education. Funding received which is specific in nature e.g.
projects, capital ahd amounts for the provision of a particular service (which includes funding that flows through

from Jisc into Jisc Services Limited) is classified as an incoming resource from charitable activities.

3. Incoming resources from charitable activities

Funding
Primgry

" purpose trading

N

The Group is domiciled in the UK. Income for the year to 3iJuIy 2015 from external customers that are non UK

Digital .

2015

based was £1,435k (2014: £2,123k) with the remainder generated in the UK.

4. Resources expended on charitable activities

Network
operations
Network
services
Content and
acquisition
Support and-
liaison’

" Technical and
development
Other cost of
sales
Subscription
payments
Goodwill

* amortisation
Support costs

Digital Digital Value 2014

infrastructure content . future realisation Total Total
and and
technology discovery

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

52,312 3,162 234 - 55,708 60,269

10,849 30,525 111 - 328 " 41,813 41,666

63,161 ._33,687 345 328 97,521 101,929

2014

Digital Digital Digital ) Value 2015
infrastructure content and future realisation Total Total
and discovery ‘ )
technology £'000 X £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
£'000 :
51,348 - - 51,348 46,919
5,293 22 . - 5,315 - 771
- 7,957 - - 7,957 1,900 -
- - - 7,620 7,620 10,664
2,688 3,011 4,108 - 9;807 3,679 °
. 50 - 50 9,363
- 24,479 - 24,479 24,428
- 21 - 21 51 .
545 3,505 1,546 5,533 11,129 11,204
59,874 39,045 5,654 13,153 117,726 108,979
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

4. Resources expended on charitable activities continued

Digital infrastructure and technology is in the main the operéting costs associated with the Janet network,
network related services and development. Digital content and discovery is in the main the costs associated with
the trading activities of Jisc Collections. Digital futures expenditure relates to activities on behalf of the sector
undertaken in a co-design process. Value realisation expenditure relates to customer engagement and
communications activities on behalf of the sector. ‘

All expenditure includes irrecoverable VAT, whére it has been incurred.

5. Grants .
Digital Digital Digital Value 2015 - 2014
infrastructure content and ' future realisation _Total Total
and - discovery .
technology -
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Grants paid to third 200 " 4,536 2,412 ' 2,579 9,‘727 " 25,902
parties : A , , .
Grant paid to 44,481 2,190 _ . Lo 46,671 61,802
* subsidiary : ‘

Grants totalling £40k (2014: £90k) were made to 12 individuals during the year (2014: £90k to 18 individuals).

Adetailed list of grants paid on a per institution basis can be found on note 2g of the notes to the financial
statements.

6. Support Costs of Charitable Activities

2015 . 2014
£'000 : £'000 -
Wages and pension ; ' 3,835 2,969
Travel and subsistence 455 . 732
Consumables, post, printing, phone and stationery E 151 644
Computer , ) 1,422 534
Rent and rates _ 1,923 1,716
- Temporary staff . ‘ - 562 ' 470
Advertising ' o ' : 69 87
Consultancy and training : 1,604 h 1,371
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‘Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

6. Support Costs of Charitable Activities continued

Insurances : ' o 126 ’ 168
Professional and audit fees _ 517 : 605
Bank charges 74 . 144
Bad debt 50 ' 16
Support service . o 328 - 282
Exchange gains and losses , 13 A (18)
Restructuring’ 4 , - © 1,484

11,129 11,204

The transfer of business (see note jo) transferred all supports costs (these included support costs for digital -
infrastructure and technology and digitallco.ntent and discovery) from the subsidiary to Jisc from 1 April 2015.
‘Please note the subsidiary was charged a management charge from Jisc to cover the cost incurred on behalf the
subsidiary for the costs of charitable activities and support costs. '

Support costs of Jisc of £9,973k (2014:£ 7,893k) are allocated where possible directly to the charitable activity
and where this direct allocation was not possible in line with the number of direct staff working in each charitable
activity type. o

7. Governance costs

P o o ‘ . 2015 2014

£'000 £'000

Internal and external audit . 134 116
Senior management ) - 872 944
Trustee expenses . : ' : 8 4
Support ) ' - 46 38
- . 1,060 - 1,102
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8. Transactions with trustees

(a) Remuneration
Recipient

Professor Martyn Harrow
Professor Sir Tim O’Shea
Professor Martin Hall

Professor David Maguire

‘Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

2015 - 2014

P £

177,531 169,950
- 6,250 h

11,000 7,000

3000 -

191,531 183,200

" The remuneration of Professors Martin Hall, Martyn Harrow and David Maguire are for their roles as resigned
.Chair, Chief Executive Officer and Chair respectively, rather than as trustees. Their recruitment and appointment

to the Jisc organisation was completed prior to their appointment as trustees. The level of remuneration has
been approved by the Remuneration committee, and the articles of association of Jisc give express authorlty for

their employment.

(b) Reimbursement of expenses

Expenses were paid to g (2014: 7) trustees durmg the year. Below is a breakdown by expenditure type:

Travel

Subsistence

9. Staff and wages

2015 . 2014
| £ ' £
7,701 3,817

- | 298
7,701 4,115

The monthly average number of people employed by the company in the financial year was 241 (2014: 106) and
by the group were 424 (2014: 295). This can be further broken down as follows during the year. ’
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Notes to the financial statements '2014-2015 continued

9. Staffand wages continued

<

2015 2014

£'000 £'000 .
Wages and salaries ‘ T 18,480 13,172
Social security costs ~ : . 1,536 1,090
Other pension costs 2,872 1,926
22,888 16,188

Staff numbers have been reported on the basis of full time equivalent hours. in addition, temporary staff costs of

£908,258 (2014: £470,534) for the group were incurred during the year.

The number of staff and gross salary and emoluments of staff whose remuneration was over £60,000 werein the

following ranges:

2015 2014
-£60,000 - £69,999° 13 8
+ £70,000 - £79,999 8 10
£80,000 - £89,999 3 3
£90,000 - £99,999 0 1
£100,000 - £109,999 3 3
£110,000 - £219,999 3 )
. £120,000 - £129,999 (o] (¢}
£130,000 - £139,999. 1 1
£140,000 - £149,999 0 o
£150,000 - £159,999 1 1

: _ T 32 27 .

The number of staff whose remuneration was over £60,000 to whom retirement benefits are accruing under:
Y, 2015 2014
Money purchase schemes 2 1
Defined benefit schemes ' 30 26
’ : ' 32 27

By activity, the average number of persons employed by the group during the year is:

2015 2014
Management ’ 47 30
Technical ' 308 205
Administrative o 69 60
424 295
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Notes to the financial,statements'2014-2015 continued

10. Netincoming resources
Net incoming resources are stated after charging/ (crediting)

2015 _ 2014

£'000 £'000
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets ' 1,855 1,007
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets - - 8,592 . 8,238
Exchange differences ‘ : 13 (18)
Operating lease rentals: Property . 1,275 828
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 26 17

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditors and its associates:

2015 o 2014

£'000 £'000
Audit of company and consolidated financial statements 46 48
Audit of subsidiaries _ 29 25
Total audit : oo .75 73
Tax compliance services - : ' i7 : 2
Tax advisory services 118 - 93
Services relating to taxation _ - 13§ .95
Other non-audit services ' ' 13 -
Total T 223 - 168

Please note, the majority of the non-audit service fees related toadvice on the business transfer
agreement. Note also that £23k of the above audit fees were due to the auditing of the business
" transfer agreement transactions. -
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

11. Intan.giblé assets

Group

Cost

As at 1 August 2014
Disposals

As at 31 July 2015

Accumulated amortisation
- Asati1August 2014

Charge for the year

Disposals '

As at 31 July 2015

As at 31 July 2014

As at 31 July 2015

Rights to Goodwill Total
electronic
content

£'000 £'000 £'000

20,142 254 20,396

- (254) (254)

20,142 - 20,142

8,811 233 9,044

1,834 21 1,855

- (254) (254)

10,645 - 10,645

11,331 21 11,352

9,497 - 9,497
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

12. Tangible assets

Group
Network Office - Office Fixtures and Website  Total
equipment -~ Equipment Furniture - fittings
£'000 ’ v £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000

Cost . : : ‘
As at1August2014 | - 22,988 702 520 2,253 109 26,572
Additions 7103 609 20 . . 1,065 - 8,797
Disposals ' : (1,651) (63) " (4) - - - (1,718) .
At as at 31 July 2015 28,440 1,248 536 . 3,318 109 33,651
Accumulated
Depreciation , . )

. Asat iAugust 2014 10,255 353 T o113 483 87 11'291.
Charge for the year - 7,614 249 76 ) 631 22 8,592
Eliminated on disposal . (1,636) : (55) (4) - - (1,695)
As at 31 July 2015 . 16,233 547 a8g S 1,114 109 18,288
Net book value at 31 yrre o8 i ‘21» 1€ 281
July 2014 12,73 350 4 477 A 15, ’

- Net book value at 31

July 2015 . - 12,207 A 701 351 2,204 o 15,463
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Notes to the financial statements 2614-2015 continued

12. Tangible assets continued

Company
Office © Office Fixtures Total
Equipment Furniture and Fittings
£'000 £'000 - £'000 £'000
"Cost ) .
As at1 August 2014 211 ' 232 1,819 2,262
Additions - 572 13’ 1,065 _ 1,650
Transfer in 1,871 - 538 ‘ 915 3,324
Disposals ] (54) - B : - ' (54)
Asat 31 July 2015 . 2,600 783 3,799. ’ 7,182
Accumulated Depreciation - .
As at 1 August 2014 52 15 334 ) 401
Transfers in 1,724 376 690 2,790
Charge for the year 177 41 570 788
- Disposals a (54) - L - (54)
As at 31 July 2015 ‘1,899 . 432 - 1,594 ° 3,925
Net book value as at 31 July . ' ‘
2014 159 217 1,485 1,861
Net book value as at 31 . . o
: 701 351 . 2,205 . 3,257

July 2015

Under the business transfer agreement (seé note 30), a number oftangible‘ a>ssets were transferred from Jisc .
Services Limited to the Company on 1 April 2015. These assets were transferred at their net book value in Jisc
Services Limited, and no fair value adjustment to their value was judged necessary. The impact of this transfer on
the Group's results was £nil.

s ) : ‘
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13. Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Company
Jisc C Jisc
Total ~ Services Commercial
Limited Limited

_ £'000 £'000
As at 1 August 2014 25,139 25,139 -
Additions ‘ 250 - 250
Disposals o - - -
As at 31 July 2015 25,389 25,139 250

All investments are held in subsidiaries and Jisc holds these investments as part of its charitable activities. The

directors believe that the carrying value of the investments'is supported by their underlying net assets

The company holds investments in the following company undertakings:

Country of Activity % Holding Turnover  Expenditure, Operating Assets Liabilities
registratio oflssued - interest and surplus/ '
n " Share . tax (deficit)
Capital or
guarantees £'000 £000 . £'000 £'000 £'000
Jisc Services Great Development 100% 84,877 (92,006) (7,129) ‘92,221 43,843
Limited Britain and ’ )
(previously ‘maintenance ) ) '
known as Jisc of the Janet
Collections network and
and Janet connected
Limited) services and
provision of
digital .
content for .

the education
and research

sector
Content Great Procurement 100% e 13 (23) . - -
Complete Britain services for
Limited electronic ’
(*) content to

education

sector
Jisc Great Provides . 100% - - 370 (370) - (121)
Commercial Britain public : '
Limited enterprise

with access

to JiSC's

infrastructure )
PIB-dLimited Great Dormant . 30.6% - - . - , o (1)
*y ’ Britain company .

(*) Investments held indirectly.

Funds

£'000

48,378

(221)

(@
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

13. Investments in subsidiaries an associates continued

The above turnover figure for Jisc Services Limited includes grant income from Jisc. The figures are quoted under .
SORP and therefore will not correspond with the individual company financial statements which are prepared .
under UK GAAP. Jisc Commercial Limited figures are quoted under SORP and therefore will not correspond with
the individual company financial statements which are prepared under UK GAAP. PIB-d Limited is not

considered material and therefore has not been included within the group consolidated financial statements.

14. Debtors

Group ' - Company
- As at As at ~ Asat As at
31/07/2015 31/07/2014 31/07/2015 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Trade debtors ° 5,700 4,098 370 360
Amounts owed by group - - 20,897 26,674
undertakings ‘ : ‘ '
Other debtors 1,385 . 1,301 1,205 ' a8
Prepaymentsand accrued -~ = -20,992 20,168 1,714 4,257 -
income ‘ :
28,077 25,567 . - 24,186 31,309.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
As at Asat As at Asat -
31/07/2015 31/07/2014 31/07/2015 - 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 2,563 1,181 : 550. . 506
Corporation tax , 14 14 L T -
Other taxation and social - 603 397 A 544 (245)
. security
Other creditors. 947 673 396 96
Accruals and deferred 28,238 ) 27,567 21,053 : 24,857
income ) : .
32,365 29,832 22,543 25,214 -

v

Included within other creditors is an amount owed to pension funds £371,440 (2014:£ 91,888).
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due in one year continued

Deferred income -

Income has been-deferred where services or goods issued to beneficiaries have not been or are partially
provided. In addition performance-related grants that are conditional upon the delivery of a specific level of
service have been deferred where the conditions had not yet been met.

_ Group Compény
As at Asat As at * Asat
31/07/2015 31/07/2014 31/07/2015 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deferred income brought forward 13,395 12,942 157 -
Transferred from subsidiary - - 1,016 -
Released in year (13,395) (22,033) (257) -
Deferred in year 18,417 11,589 2,545 " ag7
Transferred from Iong term - 897 - -
18,417 13,395 3,561 157
16. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Group Company
. “Asat "As at As at As at
31/07/2015  31/07/2014 31/07/2015 31/07/2014
' £'000 " £'000 £'000 £'000
Deferred income ) : - 318 - -
- 318 - -
17. Provision for liabilities and charges
Group Company _
As at As at “Asat As at
31/07/2015 31/07/2014 31/07/2015 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000 ' £'000 £'000
Brought forward 1,484 - 1,484 -
Additions - 1,484 - 1,484
Utilised inyear  (3,484) .- (1,484) -
Balance carried forward . - v 1,484 - 1,484
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Notes to the financial statements 2014-2015 continued

17. Provision for liabilities and charges continued -

This provision brought forward related to restructuring of currently grant funded customer engagement

activities to an in-house solution, in order to achieve efﬁaenaes on behalf of the sector. The provusmn was.used

for its intended in purpose in flnanaal year 2014/15.

18. Restricted funds

Group

Balance brou\ght forward
Incoming resources
Resources expended
Fixed assets purchased and transferred to
unrestricted funds
~ Other transfers to unrestricted funds

Balance carry forward

.Company

Balance brought forward
Incoming resources
Resources expended

Balance carry forward

Restricted balances within the group are held as £125k accrued income and the remaining balance in cash. The
-cash is held within the subsidiary company bank accounts as during the fmancnal year it acted as a central

treasury management facility.

Other transfers between restricted and unrestricted funds relate to where Jisc makes grants to Jisc.'Services
Limited, the grant is made from Jisc out of unrestricted funds however the nature of the grant is such that the
grant becomes restricted within Jisc Services Limited. '

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
26,084 9,391
19,622 35,605
(14,591) (15,703)
(4,656) (4,987)
- 1,778
26,459 . 26,084
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
/7,748 6,926
19,113 34,888
(12,951) (34,066)
13,910 7,748
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19. Unrestricted and designated funds

Group 4
v Total Unrestricted Grant Paid . Transition Pension Restructuring
fund funded prepayrﬁents fund contribution - fund
assets :
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 . £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance brought 79,242 . 33,'432' . 24,480 . . 5516 . 5,000 10,350 464
forwardon 1 ) ’ :
August 2014
Net incoming 3,970 7,313 , - . - (2,879) ) - . (464)
resources
Transfersto/ - 4,467 (5,014) 547 - . - -
_ from unrestricted ' )
to designated
Transferred from 4,656 ' - 4,656 : - ' - - -
restricted .
Balance carry 87,868 45,212 24,122 . 6,063 ' 2,121 " 710,350 -
forward on 31 ’ o
July 2015
;
Company
Total Unrestricted Grant Paid " Transition . Pension Restructuring
Fund funded . Prepayments fund contribution fund
assets
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000 : £'000
Balance brought 67,230 49,556 1,860 - 5,000 10,350 . 464
. forwardon 1 ’
August 2014
Net incoming: 10,330 13673 - . (2,879) . . (464)
resources : ) ’
Transfers from - (2,064) 2,064 - . -
unrestricted to :
designated
Balance carry 77,560 61,165 .. 3,924 .- : 2,121 10,350 -
forward on 31 ) ’
July 2015
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19. Unrestricted and designated funds continued

The designafed fund labelled grant funded assets reflects the net book value of assets purchased using grants.
The designated fund labelled paid prepayments reflects the value of the prepayments which had been paid at

the year-end where this income had been deferred in the subsidiary Jisc Services Limited under UK GAAP.
The transition fund is an amount designated for planned expenditure in relation to the restructuring of the group
and some of its associated grant funded organisations.

The pension fund is designated to offset potential increases in employer contributions to the defined benefit
pension échemeAs, and includes associated grant funded organisations where the grant paid reflects actual costs.
The restructuring fund is designated for planned expenditure in relation to the currently grant funded customer
engagement activities to an in-house solution, in order to achieve efficiencies on behalf of the sector. '

20. Analysis of nets assets betWeen funds

Unrestricted _Restricted " Total . Unrestricted Restricted Total

Funds Funds 2015 Funds Funds 2014 .

2015 2015 S 2014 - 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets 24,960 . - 24,960 26,633 - 26,633
Current 95, 273 26,459 121,732 84,243 26,084 110,327
assets - o
Current - (32,365) - (32,369 (31,316) - - (31,316)
liabilities g
Long term - - - (318). - (318) -
liabilities o ‘ ‘ . .
Total Net 87,868 26,459 114,327 79,242 26,084 105,326
Assets ' : : : '

21. Members Liability

Jisc is a charitable company limited by guarantee (CLG). The constitution allows for two classes of membership.

One class comprises Representative Members, which includes the original members and guarantors - the
Association of Colleges, GuildHE and Universities UK. Each of these Representative Members holds 30% of the
voting rights. The other class of membership, in place from 1 August 2014, comprises Institutional Members, who
together hold 10% of the \}oting rights. The liability of each member (both Institutional and Representative) is
limited to a maximum of £1. This liability will apply for the duration of membership of the charitable company and
for one year beyond the end of membership. :
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22. Operating lease commitments

'

Group : Company '
As at As at As at As at
31/07/2015 31/07/2014 31/07/2015 31/07/2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Land and buildings
Within two to five years 551 461 551 461 -
After five years . 502 484 - -
' 1,053 945 551

461

23. Reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash inflow from operating

activities

2015 2014

£'000 £'000

Net incoming resources 9,001 - 25,051

Interest (374) (423)

Tax . - (23)

Loss on disposal of fixed-assets 20 17

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 8,592 . 8,238

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,855 1,007

Provisions , (1,484) 1,484

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (2,510) 28

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 2,218 . (2,705)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,318 32,674
Analysis of net funds

As at 2014/15 As at

1 August changein 31 July

2014 year 2015

£'000 "£'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 84,760 8,895 93,655
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24. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

The group has contingent liabilities of £50k (2014: £43ok) in relation to grant commltments and £nil (2014:
£1,000k) in respect of restructurlng liabilities.

The group had contingent assets of £16 968k (2014 £8,226k) in relation to capital grants Grants are recognised
when the likeliness of receipt is certain.

The company participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme. A contingent liability exists in relation
to the pension valuation recovery plan, since the company is an employer of members within the scheme.
The contingent liability relates to the amount generated by past service of current members and the associated
proportion of the deficit. Given that the scheme is a multi-employer scheme and the company is unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities, the contingent liability is not recognised as a
provision on the balance sheet. The associated receivable from the scheme in respect of the
reimbursement of the company’s expenditure is similarly not recognised.

25. Related Parties

Related Party Jisc Technologies Jisc Jisc Collections Grant Group

Income | Expenditure | Income | Expenditure | Income | Expenditure | Expenditure | Creditors | Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 | £'000 £'000 £'000

Abertay University | 1 - - 1 63 - . . .

Aberystwyth 7 o 39 - 151 - : - ) (o)
University" ' s

Association of - - - 52 - - - B (2)
Colleges :

. Forth Valley - - : - - - 1 - - -
College of Further '
and Higher
Education

Graduate 1- 1- . - - - | 270 - -
prospects

HESA - - - - - - 677 - -

Higher Education 17 - 2,230 - - - - . g
Council for Wales :

Higher Education - - .- 1y - - - . .
Policy Institute

HPC Wales - 50 |- - - - - -
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25. Related Parties (continued)

Related Party

Jisc Tecfm_ologies

Jisc

Jisc Collections

. Grant' .

Group

Income | Expenditure

Income

Expenditure

Income | Expenditure

Expenditure

Creditors

Debtors

£'000 £'000

£'000

£'000

£'c00 £'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Jisc RSC Yorks &
Humberside
{(University of
Leeds)

22

National Library of
Wales

Oxford Brookes
University

47

37

95 . -

Ravensbourne
College

Royal Holloway,
University of
London

42

121 -

Solihull College

y

The Sheffield
Coliege

University of
Greenwich

26 g

56

73 -

17

University of Hull

‘23

51

241 -

15

48

University of
Lancaster

19 . 20

59

216

381 7

73

University of
London

35

704

49 . 22

483

11

University of
Newcastle

127

74

609'

231

University of
Oxford

9 81

342

12

-553 -

65

12

University of
Salford

129 1

18

UUK

Total

161 194

3,035

1,124

2,476 | 31

1,868

98

The institutions, suppliers and customers shown within the note have been declared as interests by the Trustees
of Jisc and the board of directors of its subsidiary.

Income of £2,230k from HEFCW (Higher Education Funding Council for Wales) related to grant fun d'ing for
recurrent expenditure for the year 2014/15. '
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26. Pension

Universities Superannuation Scheme.

USS INSTITUTIONS - .
FRS17 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company participates. in the Universities Su'perannuation Scheme (USS), a defined benefit scheme

" which is contracted out of the State Second Pension (52P). The assets of the scheme are held in a separate fund
administered by the trustee, Universities Superannuation Scheme Limited. The company is required to
“contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the pension scheme to fund the benefits payabletothe
company’s employees. In 2015, the percentage was 16% (2014: 16%). The company is unable to identify its
share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a‘consistent and' reasonable basis and
therefore, as required by FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme: ' o '

The total cost charged to the profit and loss account is £2,768,072 (2014: £1,817,441) in respect of the USS
scheme, pension costs payable to other personal pension schemes amounteéd to £103,617 (2014: £61, 278).

There was neither a prepayment nor an accrual at the end of the financial year in respect of these
contributions. The disclosures below represent the-position from the scheme’s financial statements.

The latest available triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2014 (“the valuation
date”), which was carried out using the projected unit ‘method and is currently being audited by the
scheme auditor. Based on this 2014 valuation it is expected that employer contributions will increase to 18%
~ from 1 April 2016. ' -

The 2014 valuation was the third valuation for USS under the scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the
Pensions Act 2004, which requires schemes to adopt a statutory ‘funding objective, which is to have
sufficient and appropriate assets to cover their technical provisions. At the valuation date, the value of the
assets of the scheme was ‘£41.6 billion and the value of the scheme’s technical provisions was £46.9
billion indicating a shortfall of £5.3 billion. The assets therefore were sufficient to cover 89% of the benefits
which had accrued to members after allowing for expected futire increases in earnings.

FRS 17 liability numbers have been produced for the using the following-assumptions:

\
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26. Pension continued

2015 | ‘ 2014
Discount rate B T 3.3% o 4.5%
Pensionable salary growth 3.5% in the first year ' 4.4%

and 4.0% thereafter

Price inflation (CP) 2.2% 2.6%

The main demographic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. Mortality in retirementis
assumed to be in line with the Continuous Mortality Investigation's (CMI) S1NA tables as follows:

Male members’ mortality SiNA [“light”] YoB tables — No age rating
Female members’ mortality SaNA [“light”] YoB tables —rated down 1 year ) . . ’

Use of these mortality tables reasonably reflects the actual USS experience. To allow for further
improvements in mortality rates the cMmI 2009 projections with a 1.25% pa long term rate were also
adopted for the 2014 FRS17 figures, for the March 2015 figures the long term rate has been increased to 1.5%
and the CMI 2014 projections adopted, and the tables have been weighted by 98% for males and gg% for .
females. The current life expectancies on retirement at age 65 are:

2015 2014

Males currently aged 65 (years) A 24.2 » 23.7
Females currently aged 65 (years) ) ‘ : 26.3 25.6
Males currently aged 45 (years) 26.2 25.5
Females currently aged 45 (years) . .. 286 _ . 276
. 2015 2014
Existing benefits : A : o
Scheme assets " £49.0bn ' £41.6bn
FRS 17 liabilities ' £67.6bn : ..£55.5bn
FRS 17 deficit £18.6bn " £13.9bn

FRS 17 funding level . 72% 75%

The total USS pension cost for the institution was £1,769,570 (2014: £603,070) and £2,768,072 for the group
(2014: £1,817,441). This includes £371,178 (2014: £83,867) for the charity and £375,115 for the group (2014:
£83,867) of underpayments of contributions at the balance sheet date. The contribution rate payable by the
institution was 16% of pensionable salaries. '
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26. Pension continuved

Civil Service pensions

Pension benefits, for a small number of employees who transferred from HEFCE, are provided through the Civil
Service pension arrangements. Members may be in one of four defined benefit schemes; either a final salary
scheme (classic, classic premium or classic plus); or a whole career scheme (nuvos). The statutory arrangements.
are unfunded with the cost of benefits met by monies voted by parliaments each year. Pension’s payable under
the classic, classic premium, classic plus and nuvos areiincreased annually in line with pensions increase
legistation. Employee contributions are salary-related and range between 1.5% and 5.9% of pensionable
earnings. The rate for employers contributions range between18.8% and 21.8%, andis charged directly to the
SOFA. Increases to employee contributions~app|ied from April 2013.

-

One employee is a member of the partnership account which is a stakeholder pension arrangement. Jisc makes
a basic contribution of between 3% and 12.5% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakeholder pension
product chosen by the employee from a panel of three providers. The employee does not have to contribute but
where they do make contributions the employer will match these up to 3% of pensionable salary (in addition to
the emp|oyer’s basic contribution). Jisc also contributes a further 0.8% of pensionable salary to cover the cost of
centrally-provided risk benefit cover (death in service and ill health retirement).

Defined contribution

There are two defined contribution schemes operating within the group, at the balance sheet date there were 4
active members. Contributions within the company amounted to £20,719 (2014: £18,750) and group
contributions were £43,256 in the year and (2014: £42,528). Contributions are charged to the SOFA as incurred.
This includes an amount of £4,305 (2014:£1,563), outstanding at the balance sheet date.

27. Taxation

As a registered charity, Jisc is entitled to certain tax exemptions on income and profits from investments and
surpluses on any trading activities carried out in the furtherance of its primary objectives. "

The taxation credit of £nil (2014: credit of £23k) included on the SOFA relates to corporation tax due by the
" subsidiary, Jisc Services Limited, in line with investment income received in the year. Neither the grbup»nor
charitable company had any deferred tax assets or liabilities (2024: nil).
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28. Results of the charitable company

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
fund fund 2015 2014
£'000- £'000 £'000 £'000
Total incoming resources 79,189 19,113 98,302 116,556
Net surplus: 4 10,330 6,162 16,492 11,904
29. Grants Paid
~ Jisc technologies Customer Experience Digital resources Futures
Capital Capital Capital Capital
and Recurrent and Recurrent and Recurrent and- Recurrent
projects projects projects projects
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Anglia Ruskin University - - - 168 - - 14 -
British Universities Film & Video . -
. . - . - . 581 . -
Council
Edinburgh University - o - - - - 410 3,294 202 727
" Higher Education Careers Service Unit - - - - - - 270 -
Higher Education Statistics Agency ) - - - - - - 677 -
Limited .
Jisc Services Limited 8,498 35,983 - - - 2,190 - -
The University of Manchester - ’ - - - (168) (104) 19 -
Shibboleth Consortium . - 200 - - - - - -
The Higher Education Academy . - - - 219 - - 5 -
The University of Nottingham - ; - - - - - (147) -
“University of Glasgow - - - 262 - - (19) -
University of Lancaster - - - 166 - - . 7 -
University of Leicester < - - - - - - (468) - -
University of London ’ - T - 468 - - 15 -
University of Newcastle - - - 226 - - - 5
University of Wales Swansea - - - 189 - - - -
* University of Wolverhampton ) - - - 132 - . - - -
Other (less than <£100k) ' - - - 749 475 T 48 788 317
' Total grants paid 8,498 36,183 - 2,579 717 6,009 1,363 1,049
Amounts paid to the University of Edinburgh and the University of Manchester are in relation to EDINA and
Mimas respectively. :
30. Business transfer agreement
On the 1 April 2015, the Group underwent a restructuring. This principally involved the transfer of employees,
assets, liabilities and contracts from the Jisc Services Limited to the Company. Following the transfer, services
provided between the Company and Jisc Services Limited are recharged according to a memorandum of
understanding. -
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30. Business transfer agreement (continued)

Jisc Services Limited gifted to the Company £541k of net assets valued at 31 March 2015, the valuation of these
assets and liabilities is at net book value. The valuation comprised of fixed assets at net book value (see Note 12),
prepayments, cash, trade creditors, accruals and payroll liabilities.

Costs of transferred activities amounted to £1,091k. The Company charged Jisc Services Limited a management
charge which recoups these costs.

The impact of this transfer and subsequént‘inter-company recharges are not significant in Jisc's consolidated
.Group figures. ' : '
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